
There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Philippa Turvey on 01733 452460 as soon as possible.

AB
PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 20 DECEMBER 2016
1.30 PM

Bourges/Viersen Rooms - Town Hall

AGENDA
Page No

1. Apologies for Absence

2. Declarations of Interest

At this point Members must declare whether they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, or other interest, in any of the items on the agenda, 
unless it is already entered in the register of members’ interests or is a 
“pending notification” that has been disclosed to the Monitoring Officer. 

3. Members' Declaration of intention to make representations as Ward 
Councillor

4. Minutes of the Meeting Held on 18 October 2016 5 - 12

5. Development Control and Enforcement Matters

5.1 16/01750/FUL - 29 Long Causeway, Peterborough, PE1 1YJ 13 - 22

5.2 16/01751/ADV - 29 Long Causeway, Peterborough, PE1 1YJ 23 - 30

5.3 16/02049/FUL - Firwood, First Drift, Wothorpe, Stamford 31 - 44

6. Review of Local List for Validation of Planning Applications 45 - 60

7. Planning Appeals Quarterly Report on Appeals Performance 
September to November 2016

61 - 66

Public Document Pack



Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours

In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair.

Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, take photographs and use 
social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that is open to the public. A protocol on this facility is 
available at: 

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recor
ding&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385

Committee Members:

Councillors: C Harper (Chairman), L Serluca (Vice Chairman), J Bull, G Casey, P Hiller, J Stokes, 
S Martin, A Sylvester, A Bond, A Clark and C Ash

Substitutes: Councillors: R Bisby, Amjad Iqbal, N Sandford and B Saltmarsh

Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Philippa Turvey on telephone 01733 
452460 or by email – philippa.turvey@peterborough.gov.uk

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385


CASE OFFICERS:

Planning and Development Team: Nicholas Harding, Lee Collins, Paul Smith, Mike Roberts, 
Janet Maclennan, David Jolley, Louise Lovegrove, Vicky 
Hurrell, Sundas Shaban, Amanda McSherry, Sam Falco, Matt 
Thomson, Michael Freeman, Jack Gandy

Minerals and Waste: Theresa Nicholl, Alan Jones

Compliance: Nigel Barnes, Anthony Whittle, Karen Cole, Julie Robshaw

NOTES:

1. Any queries on completeness or accuracy of reports should be raised with the Case Officer 
or Head of Planning, Transport and Engineering Services as soon as possible.

2. The purpose of location plans is to assist Members in identifying the location of the site.  
Location plans may not be up-to-date, and may not always show the proposed development.  

3. These reports take into account the Council's equal opportunities policy but have no 
implications for that policy, except where expressly stated.

4. The background papers for planning applications are the application file plus any documents 
specifically referred to in the report itself.

5. These reports may be updated orally at the meeting if additional relevant information is 
received after their preparation.



This page is intentionally left blank



AB
    MINUTES OF THE PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION COMMITTEE 

HELD AT THE TOWN HALL, PETERBOROUGH ON 18 OCTOBER 2016

Members Present: Councillors Harper (Chairman), Serluca (Vice Chairman), Bull, Casey, 
Hiller, Martin, Sylvester, Clark, Bond, Ash, and Bisby

Officers Present:  Nick Harding, Head of Planning
Louise Lovegrove, Senior Development Management Officer
Theresa Nicholl, Development Manager
Hannah Edwards, Planning and Highways Lawyer 
Simon Ireland, Principal Engineer (Highways)
Pippa Turvey, Senior Democratic Services Officer

1. Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Stokes. Councillor Bisby was in 
attendance as substitute.

2. Declarations of Interest

The Chairman noted that, in relation to agenda item 5.1 ‘Jack Hunt School, Ledbury 
Road, Netherton, Peterborough’, all Committee Members had been lobbied by 
interested parties. Members were not considered to be predetermined on this matter.

Councillor Casey declared that, in relation to item 5.1 ‘Jack Hunt School, Ledbury 
Road, Netherton, Peterborough’, he was known to one of the public speakers. This 
would not impact on his decision.

3.    Members’ Declaration of intention to make representations as Ward Councillor

No Members’ declaration of intention to make representations as Ward Councillors 
were received.

4.    Minutes of the Meeting Held on 6 September 2016

The minutes of the meeting held on 6 September 2016 were approved as a correct 
record.

5. Development Control and Enforcement Matters

5.1 16/00578/R3FUL – Jack Hunt School, Ledbury Road, Netherton, Peterborough

The Committee was presented with an application for a new dining block, teaching 
block, and science laboratory. Also included within the application was an all-weather 
pitch with associated external works, including car parking and landscaping.

The Head of Planning provided an overview of the application and highlighted a 
number of key issues within the report and update report. 

5



Councillor Murphy addressed the Committee and responded to questions from 
Members. In summary the key points highlighted included:

 It was suggested that traffic, particularly along Ledbury Road, was a 
significant part of this application. 

 It was felt that the mitigation measures to be put in place against the staged 
increase in pupil numbers was unclear. 

 It was not believed that anything less than a regulation order would prevent 
people blocking driveways with their cars during busy periods. 

 The Committee were advised that one objector had requested a meeting with 
officers, which had not been carried out. 

 The residents of Audley Gate considered that the proposed pitch was too 
close to their dwellings and had suggested alternative options, which had not 
been taken up. 

 It was suggested that the detrimental effect of the development needed to be 
carefully considered by the Committee. 

David O’Neil, Planning Consultant, addressed the Committee in objection to the 
application and responded to questions from Members. In summary the key points 
highlighted included:

 Mr O’Neil was a former Planning Advisor to Sports England and was 
representing 117 residents that supported the expansion of the school in 
principle, however took issue with the size of the expansion proposed.

 It was not considered that the proposed pitch would require community use, 
as there was limited use at the moment and Hockey England had identified 
the surface material as inappropriate. 

 It was noted that Sports England had not objected to a small pitch, as 
proposed by local residents. 

 It was considered that the resultant noise levels of the pitch would be 
perceptible to the surrounding residents and it was not accepted that no 
difference would be felt. 

 The applicant acknowledges that without the acoustic barriers within the 
proposal, there would be noise impact. 

 The hours of use proposed were considered to be excessive. A limit of up to 
18:00h on a weekday and no use on weekends or bank holidays was 
suggested as an alternative.

 If the Committee were of a mind to accept the proposals, it was requested 
that this be done subject to conditions to limit the size of the pitch, restrict the 
hours of use, and to withhold the location of the pitch as a reserved matter. 

 It was considered that the height of the acoustic fence was important, as the 
land on which the nearby residents were cited was higher than that of the 
pitch. 

The Senior Development Management Officer clarified that Sports England had only 
been consulted on the application before the Committee and that the conditions 
proposed by Mr O’Neil could not be applied, as set out in the update report.

Pamela Kilbey, Head Teacher, Jack Hunt School, Brian Howard, Head of Schools 
Infrastructure, Peterborough City Council, and Kevin Malle, Contractor, addressed 
the Committee in support of the application and responded to questions from 
Members. In summary the key points highlighted included:

 It was advised that the school urgently required further accommodation and a 
sports pitch to meet the current need and expected expansion.

 The current dining was inadequate and the size of classrooms needed 
increasing.

6



 Other schools in the area had had rebuilds in the recent past. Jack Hunt had 
remained unchanged for 50 years. 

 The proposals would include 11 additional classrooms and a science block. 
 The outdoor pitch was required to deliver the PE facility. Jack Hunt was the 

only secondary school in the area that need not have an all-weather pitch, 
despite it being a PE college. 

 An onsite pitch would maximise the use of the pitch within the curriculum. 
 It was advised that the site had a number of constraints and that, while 

alternatives had been considered, the proposals before Committee 
represented the only feasible approach.

 It was noted that meetings had been held with residents, and that their views 
had not been ignored. 

 443 people were in support of the application. 
 The concerns of residents in relation to transport were noted and the school 

was to work with the Council in order to improve the number of students 
travelling to school by car.

In response to questions from the Committee the Head of Planning advised that the 
closer the acoustic fencing was to the source of the noise, and the taller the fencing 
itself, the more affective it would be. As such, a 3 metre fence at the edge of the pitch 
was considered to be satisfactory. The ground level did change, however, it was the 
relationship between the fence and the noise source that was the key consideration. 
It was further advised that the majority of individuals supporting the proposals were 
staff, pupils, or parents of pupils at the school. 

The Committee considered the report and surmised that the key point of contention 
for a number of objectors was the potential for greater traffic. It was emphasised by 
the Committee that the Travel Plan would need to be sufficiently robust to mitigate 
against the potential issues. 

It was considered the proposed sports pitch would be of great benefit to the school 
and that a smaller sized pitch would be insufficient. 

A motion was proposed and seconded to agree that permission be granted, as per 
officer recommendation. The motion was carried 10 voting in favour, 1 voting against, 
and none abstaining from voting.

RESOLVED: (10 voted in favour, 1 voted against, none abstained from voting) that 
planning permission is GRANTED subject to:

1) The conditions set out in the Committee Report; and
2) To receipt of no new material considerations having been raised by objectors 

following further consultation on the revised Noise Assessment submitted by the 
Applicant.  

Reasons for the decision:

The assessment within the report set out the detailed impacts arising from the 
proposed development which could be summarised as follows:

- There was an identified need for the proposed expansion of Jack Hunt School 
which would result in 150 additional students in attendance.  The proposed 
extensions, building and car parking would provide improved/additional 
accommodation to meet these demands which should be afforded great 
weight, in accordance with paragraph 72 of the National Planning Policy 

7



Framework (2012);
- The proposed AWP would result in the loss of playing fields, however Sport 

England had advised that the benefit arising from the AWP through improved 
curriculum offer and community use would outweigh this loss, in accordance 
with Policy CS19 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and 
paragraph 74 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2012); 

- The proposed development would not result in an unacceptable level of harm 
to the character, appearance or visual amenity of the surrounding area, in 
accordance with Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) 
and Policy PP2 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012);

- There were notable existing highway safety and congestion issues 
surrounding the school at peak times which would be exacerbated through 
increased student and staff numbers.  Mitigation could be secured to reduce 
the number of car borne trips to/from the site which would reduce the level of 
impact to the surrounding highway network, in accordance with Policy CS14 
of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP12 of the 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012);

- Adequate on-site cycle and car parking would be provided to meet the needs 
of the proposed development, in accordance with Policy PP13 of the 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012);

- The proposed AWP would result in additional noise impact to neighbouring 
residential properties however, subject to mitigation, the level of resultant 
noise would not be perceptible or result in an unacceptable level of harm to 
the amenities of neighbouring occupants, in accordance with Policy CS16 of 
the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP3 of the 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012);

- The proposal would not result in an undue level of overbearing impact to 
neighbouring residential properties albeit some harm to outlook would result;

- The proposal would not result in unacceptable harm to ecology within the site 
and sufficient measures can be incorporated to ensure net biodiversity gain, 
in accordance with Policy CS21 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD 
(2011) and Policy PP16 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012);

- Whilst the proposal would result in the loss of trees within the site, this would 
not result in harm to the visual amenity of the area and a resultant gain in tree 
cover would result from mitigation planting, in accordance with Policy PP16 of 
the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012);

- The proposal would not result in unacceptable harm to undiscovered buried 
heritage assets and would preserve the special character of designated 
heritage assets, therefore in accordance with Sections 66(1) and 72(1) of the 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, Policy CS17 of 
the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011), Policy PP17 of the 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012) and paragraphs 131, 132 and 
134 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2012); and

- The proposal would not result in increased flood risk within or surrounding the 
site, in accordance with Policy CS22 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD 
(2011).

Whilst it was acknowledged that the proposal would result in some level of undue 
impact in terms of traffic congestion and harm to the outlook from neighbouring 
residential properties, it was considered that on balance, the benefits arising from the 
expansion of the school and providing new and improved education facilities for the 
1,950 students, would outweigh this harm.

5.2 15/01839/MMFUL – Pasture House Farm, The Causeway, Thorney Was, 
Peterborough

8



The Committee was presented with an application for the extraction, processing, 
sale, and distribution of sand and gravel. The application also included the erection 
and use of a concrete batching plant, the establishment of an inert waste recycling 
facility, and the use of inert residues for restoration together with necessary highway 
and access improvements.

The Development Manager provided an overview of the application and highlighted a 
number of key issues within the report and update report. 

Councillor Bartlett, Thorney Parish Council, and Councillor Allen, Ward Councillor, 
addressed the Committee and responded to questions from Members. In summary 
the key points highlighted included:

 Emphasis was made on the point that over 100 trees would be lost in order to 
widen the road to access the site. 

 It was considered that this would represent a significant loss to amenity in the 
long term, was contrary to the vision statement in the Local Plan, and would 
impact on the character of the village. 

 Concerns were raised with regard to the safety of heavy goods vehicles 
turning right onto the main road.

 It was considered that the batching and processing could be more discretely 
located. 

 It was suggested that, as a gesture of good will, the applicant could release 
other land in their ownership.

 The proposals were considered to be unsubtle and intrusive. 
 The Committee were urged to insist upon conditions to complete the cycleway 

near to the site.
 Councillor Allen requested that the Committee take into account the loss of 

amenity that would be experienced by nearby residents.
 It was believed that the application was an over industrialisation of the area. 
 Conditions would be endorse to locate the entrance near to the current 

access site and to restrict the use of right turns out of the site. 
 It was considered that Eye and Thorney should receive the benefit of the 

nearby cycleway.

Mandy Brent, local resident, addressed the Committee in objection to the application 
and responded to questions from Members. In summary the key points highlighted 
included:

 Ms Brent advised that Committee that her son suffered from respiratory 
problems. She was therefore concerned as to what impact the dust from the 
site would have. 

 Concern was also raise in relation to the devaluation of her property. 
 It was suggested that the quality of life for nearby residents would be 

impacted as a result of the application. 

David Marsh, agent, addressed the Committee in support of the application and 
responded to questions from Members. In summary the key points highlighted 
included:

 The application would allow for the release of a substantial amount of 
resource and provided a site for inert waste recycling.

 Benefits were expected in the forms of highway improvement and 
employment.

 A full Environmental Impact Assessment had been carried out. 

9



 The applicants acknowledged residents’ concerns and it was believed that 
sufficient mitigation had been provided for within the application.

 It was noted that the Council were bound by a presumption in favour of 
sustainable development. 

 It was not considered that any material considerations had been raised that 
would call for the application to be refused. 

 In relation to the loss of trees, the applicant suggested that many were not of 
a high quality and were already suffering from disease or dying. The removal 
of the trees was required in order to facilitate the widening of the carriageway, 
to ensure that vehicle travel was safe.

 Standard industry practice would be utilised in order to limit the distribution of 
dust. 

In response to questions from the Committee the Development Manager confirmed 
that devaluation of property was not a material consideration for the Committee to 
take into account. 

The Principal Engineer (Highways) advised that the cycle route that joined the Green 
Wheel from Thorney did not join up with Eye. It was further advised that Highways 
England would not be happy with an entirely new access to the site. To restrict the 
egress to left turns only would require the erection of an obstruction in the road. It 
was considered that this would present a higher risk than vehicles turning right.

The Committee considered the report. The Committee were happy with the reasoning 
behind the proposals and considered that the conditions put forward would be 
sufficient to mitigate any potential impact. 

A motion was proposed and seconded to agree that permission be granted, as per 
officer recommendation. The motion was carried unanimously.

RESOLVED: (unanimous) that planning permission is GRANTED subject to the 
conditions set out in the report.

Reasons for the decision:

The NPPF stated that there was a presumption in favour of sustainable development 
- in terms of decision taking that meant approving development proposals that accord 
with the development plan without delay. The application had been considered in 
light of the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Minerals and Waste Development 
Plan, the NPPF and accompanying Planning Practice Guidance.

The principle of development was generally in accordance with policy SSP M2 of the 
SSP which allocated the site for sand and gravel extraction; the proposed extraction 
area lying beyond the allocation satisfied policies CS14, CS25 and CS26 of the Core 
Strategy. The proposal also included the restoration of the site through the 
importation of inert waste. The site was not allocated for inert fill but the proposal 
complied with polices CS18 and CS25 of the Core Strategy with regards to managing 
waste outside allocated areas due to the requirements to restore high grade 
agricultural land. The proposed concrete batching plant and inert recycling facilities 
were considered to be co-located complimentary to the quarrying and landfill 
activities and accorded with policies CS18 and CS41 of the Core Strategy.

An Environmental Statement, including the additional information requested and 
provided, accompanied the application which was considered comprehensive and 

10



met the requirements set out in the Town and Country Planning Environmental 
Impact Assessment Regulations 2011. 

Detailed topic areas had been assessed and considered;- With regard to soils and 
agriculture, the proposal was in compliance with policies CS 25 and CS38. The water 
environment had been assessed and the proposal was in compliance with policy 
CS39. The landscape character and visual impacts of the proposal were in 
compliance with policies CS25, CS33 and CS34. Ecology and geodiversity, including 
impacts on protected species and habitats, including those of both national and local 
designations, such as the Nene Washes SSSI, SPA SAC and Ramsar site, and the 
nearby Cat's Water Drain County Wildlife Site had been carefully considered and 
were in compliance with polices CS25, CS34 and CS5. Cultural heritage, including 
archaeology, the historic environment and Scheduled Monuments such as the nearby 
Bar Pasture Farm SM, had been assessed and were in compliance with policy CS36 
and paragraph 134 of the NPPF. Issues of noise and dust had been considered and 
were in accordance with policy CS34. Transport, including access, highway safety 
and enhancement of the Green Wheel path network, had been carefully considered 
and were in accordance with polices CS32 and CS37. Other specific matters, such 
as contaminated land, climate change and quarry design had also been considered 
and were in compliance with development plan policy.

Cumulative impacts with the neighbouring quarries and landfill sites at Eyebury, 
Willow Hall Farm and Pode Hole had also been taken into account.

Comments of consultees had been taken into account and suitable conditions 
attached to address any issues raised. The comments of the neighbours and other 
respondents, both for and against the proposals, had also been taken into account, 
and the positive and negative aspects of the proposal weighed in the balance. 
Further, given that the majority of the site was allocated for sand and gravel 
extraction and in all other respects the proposal as acceptable, there was no reason 
not to approve the application in line with Section 38(6) of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act.

Chairman
1.30pm – 3.55pm

11



This page is intentionally left blank

12



13



This page is intentionally left blank

14



Planning and EP Committee 20 December 2016    Item 1

Application Ref: 16/01750/FUL 

Proposal: External alterations to shopfront and rear elevation and installation of 
ATMs

Site: 29 Long Causeway, Peterborough, PE1 1YJ, 
Applicant: Metro Bank PLC
Agent: Mr Mark Underwood

Deloitte LLP

Referred by: Head of Planning 
Reason: Wider public interest 

Site visit: 27.09.2016

Case officer: Mr M A Thomson
Telephone No. 01733 453478
E-Mail: matt.thomson@peterborough.gov.uk

Recommendation:  REFUSE  

1 Description of the site and surroundings and Summary of the proposal

Site Description
The application site is a three storey stone faced building which occupies a prominent position within 
the City Centre, situated on Long Causeway.  The building is of mid-twentieth century construction 
and has a distinctive symmetrical design of five bays.  The proportionality of the building gives a 
vertical emphasis with a simple rhythm. The rear of the building has been constructed out of red 
brick and can be accessed from Dean's Court, which serves the Cathedral (a Grade 1 listed building) 
and a number of residential properties, which include the Minster Precinct (Grade 2 listed). 

The property is occupied as A1 retail, and there is a full length canopy at ground floor along the 
frontage of the building. Adjoining land uses include banks at ground floor with what appear to be 
offices above, as well as residential properties to rear (Minster Precinct). Immediately in front of the 
application site is a new meeting place, known as the Green Square (part of Long Causeway), which 
forms part of the extensive city-centre public realm works undertaken by the Council, with the eastern 
access to Queensgate Shopping Centre beyond. 

The site is situated within the City Conservation Area, and there are a number of listed buildings and 
locally listed buildings within the wider shop frontage on Long Causeway. 

Proposal
The Applicant seeks planning permission to undertake shop front alterations. A separate 
advertisement application has been submitted under 16/01751/ADV and is being considered 
separately. 

The proposed shop front alterations would include removing the existing canopy on the front 
elevation and introducing a central glazed elevation up to and including the first floor with a rendered 
cladding frame. Either side of the central glazed window at ground floor will be floor to ceiling shop 
windows with a similar clad frame surround as used for the central section. At ground floor either 
side of the central glazed window there will be two ATM machines. On the rear elevation repair works 
and some bricking up of existing openings are proposed. 

There are significant internal works proposed, including the part removal of the first floor, however 

15



as the property is not a listed building these works would not require listed building consent and/or 
planning permission. 

The current use of the building is A1 retail, however would be occupied as A2 (Bank); this is a 
permitted change under the Town and Country Planning Use Class) Order 1987 (as amended) and 
the change in use does not require planning permission.

History 
As part of the planning application process Officers have sought to negotiate an amended scheme 
with the Applicant, a scheme which would as a minimum preserve the setting of the Conservation 
Area. 

A pre-application enquiry (PAOTH/16/00071) was received on 17th June 2016 for shop front 
alterations. The Council's Conservation Officers provided comments advising that they would not 
support the scheme as submitted, and in good faith provided a sketch outlining what would be 
broadly acceptable and invited further sketches for comment. 

The Council's Conservation Officer subsequently met the Applicant and Agent to discuss the 
proposal on 14th July 2016. The Case Officer formally responded on the 22nd July 2016 advising 
that a scheme could be considered in principle, however a number of amendments were required to 
accord with Local and National Policy. 

Further correspondence was received on the 5th August 2016, of which the Council's Conservation 
Officer responded on the 1st September 2016 reaffirming the Council's position. 

This planning application was received on the 9th September 2016. An application for advertisement 
consent was validated on the 19th September 2016. The scheme as submitted was unchanged from 
what was submitted at the pre-application stage. On the 26th September 2016 Officers advised the 
Agent that the scheme as submitted could not be supported, and forwarded a further sketch which 
could be used to inform amended plans. 

On the 20th October 2016 an amended plan was submitted by the Applicant, which slightly reduced 
the height of the shop front alteration, however this was not sufficient to overcome Officer concerns. 
The main area of contention was the size of the ground floor glazed flanking elements, however 
there remained concerns with the size of the frame surround and the type of materials proposed 
(originally metal cladding). The Council's response was sent on the 24th October 2016. 

On the 4th November the Councils Conservation Officer, Case Officer and Simon Machen (Director 
of Growth and Regeneration) met with the Applicant to discuss the application. Officers were of the 
understanding that the two storey opening would remain, focusing on the central three windows at 
first floor, and the two flanking first floor windows (No.1 and 5) retained as existing, albeit with 
improved window frames (ideally refitted with dark powder-coated aluminum). There was also 
discussion of a frame surround to ground floor windows. Whilst Officers did not consider there would 
be a benefit,  Officers invited a revised drawing be provided for comments, however in doing so 
highlighted that any frame surround would need to be less bulky than the surround currently 
proposed. 

An amended plan was received on 9th November 2016, which provided an architrave of a similar 
bulk to the original two storey surround. Further, the metal panel cladding surround would be 
replaced with a stone coloured render. Officers responded on the 10th November highlighting a 
number of shortcomings, and that the revised scheme had not addressed Officer concerns. 

Discussions continued over this period and on the 29th November 2016 Officers provided two final 

16



options to proceed, either to amend the scheme to single storey or replicate the sketch provided by 
the Council's Conservation Officer. Whilst some minor changes to the original scheme have been 
put forward the Applicant has confirmed that they are not prepared to change the proposal any 
further, as such Officer Recommendation is to refuse the application. 

Under the circumstances, they have asked that the application be determined by the Planning 
Committee.

In conclusion Officers are prepared to consider a central two storey glazed element facing onto 
Green Square, however the surround would need to be of an appropriate size, scale and material 
finish. In addition, the first floor flanking windows (No's 1 and 5) would need to remain and the upper 
floors elevations to be untouched. The reason for this is to ensure that the building remained the 
focal point, rather than being hidden behind a large, unsympathetic shop front, and to respect the 
rhythm of the street scene. 

2 Planning History

Reference Proposal Decision Date
16/01751/ADV One internally illuminated projecting sign 

and one internally illuminated fascia sign, 
two non-illuminated blue fascia level signs, 
two non-illuminated logo door handles and 
4x internally illuminated ATM signs

Pending 
Decision 

3 Planning Policy

Decisions must be taken in accordance with the development plan policies below, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise.

Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

Section 66 - General duty as respects listed buildings in exercise of planning functions 
The Local Planning Authority has a statutory duty to have special regard to the desirability of 
preserving the building or its setting, or any features of special architectural or historic interest which 
it possesses.

Section 72 - General duty as respects conservation areas in exercise of planning functions. 
The Local Planning Authority has a statutory duty to have special regard to the desirability of 
preserving the Conservation Area or its setting, or any features of special architectural or historic 
interest which it possesses.

National Planning Policy Framework (2012)

Section 12 - Conservation of Heritage Assets 
Account should be taken of the desirability of sustaining/enhancing heritage assets; the positive 
contribution that they can make to sustainable communities including economic viability; and the 
desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local character and distinctiveness.  
When considering the impact of a new development great weight should be given to the asset’s 
conservation.  

Planning permission should be refused for development which would lead to substantial harm to or 
total loss of significance unless this is necessary to achieve public benefits that outweigh the 
harm/loss.  In such cases all reasonable steps should be taken to ensure the new development will 
proceed after the harm/ loss has occurred.

17



Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011)

CS16 - Urban Design and the Public Realm 
Design should be of high quality, appropriate to the site and area, improve the public realm, address 
vulnerability to crime, be accessible to all users and not result in any unacceptable impact upon the 
amenities of neighbouring residents.

CS17 - The Historic Environment 
Development should protect, conserve and enhance the historic environment including non-
scheduled nationally important features and buildings of local importance.

Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012)

PP02 - Design Quality 
Permission will only be granted for development which makes a positive contribution to the built and 
natural environment; does not have a detrimental effect on the character of the area; is sufficiently 
robust to withstand/adapt to climate change; and is designed for longevity.

PP11A - (a) Shop Frontages (including signage) 
Permission will only be granted if the design is sympathetic, it would not harm the character and 
appearance of the street and advertisements are incorporated as an integral part of the design.

PP12 - The Transport Implications of Development 
Permission will only be granted if appropriate provision has been made for safe access by all user 
groups and there would not be any unacceptable impact on the transportation network including 
highway safety.

PP17 - Heritage Assets 
Development which would affect a heritage asset will be required to preserve and enhance the 
significance of the asset or its setting.  Development which would have detrimental impact will be 
refused unless there are overriding public benefits.

Peterborough City Centre DPD (2014)

PCC03A - City Core Policy Area (a) General principles 
The Council will seek development of the highest quality which strengthens the area as the retail, 
leisure, tourism and civic focus for Peterborough and its sub-region.  New development must: 
improve the quality of the public realm; protect important views of the Cathedral; preserve or enhance 
the heritage assets of the area; and protect and enhance existing retail areas.  The Council will also 
support development which results in a net increase in dwellings, improved connectivity, 
employment, conservation of historic shop fronts and development which encourages trips into the 
City Centre.

Peterborough Local Plan 2016 to 2036 (Preliminary Draft)
This document sets out the planning policies against which development will be assessed. It will 
bring together all the current Development Plan Documents into a single document. Consultation on 
this document runs from 15 January to 25 February 2016. 

At this preliminary stage the policies cannot be afforded any weight with the exception of the 
calculation relating to the five year land supply as this is based upon the updated Housing Needs 
Assessment and sites which have planning permission or which are subject to a current application. 
Individual policies are not therefore referred to further in this report.

18



Peterborough Shop Front Design Guide (2014)

4 Consultations/Representations

PCC Conservation Officer (26.09.16)
Object - The proposed alteration does not respect the building or the character and appearance of 
Long Causeway.  The design approach is clearly at odds with the respect to the wider building group 
to the east side of Long Causeway. The scale of the alteration to the elevation is excessive and 
would create an over dominance of glazing to the elevation that would diminish the presence of the 
building in the street and be dominant in the street scene.  

The built form to the east side of Long Causeway is continuous and provides enclosure to the street.  
Buildings are predominantly early to mid-Victorian age and of three storey form.  Many buildings 
have good first and second floor detailing that adds interest to the street.  The ground floors have 
typical glazed Shopfront appearance, and upper floors are intact. The buildings recall the 'old market 
town' character of Peterborough and have group value in the street scene.  

This proposal would significantly change the character of the building and the wider group value to 
the street.  No one building is dominant the proposal would diminish the rhythm of the building within 
the street scene. The proposed change would result in over half the elevation being replaced in a 
very contemporary manner making the building an unwarranted dominant focal point.  Repeating 
such change elsewhere in the street would mar the positive contribution that the three storey 
buildings give to the structure and appearance of the street.

Second Round (1.12.16) - The revised proposal is still considered to create an elevation that would 
have an over dominant appearance in the street scene. The built form to the east side of Long 
Causeway is continuous and provides enclosure to the street from the generally three storey 
building.  No one building is dominant in the street scape of the east side of Long Causeway.  Indeed, 
it can be argued that the alteration to create a two storey central opening (across bays 2, 3 and 4) 
would create a dominant focal point at odds with the building grain where upper floor elevations are 
intact, and that a scheme removing the brash canopy and re-forming the ground floor glazing only is 
appropriate.  

The revised proposal is not supported. Clear guidance has been provided of the scheme that the 
Local Planning Authority can support.   

PCC Transport & Engineering Services (05.10.16)
Object - The Local Highway Authority has advised that the proposed works appear to encroach onto 
highway land. Note - The Agent has since confirmed that the proposed works would be on their land. 

The Local Highway Authority has also commented that the proposed ATMs and works to the rear of 
the building would not cause any highway safety concerns.

Police Architectural Liaison Officer (PALO) (04.10.16)
No objection - I have viewed the documents and note that the Applicant has other similar properties 
in large cities so their security is likely to be good and previously challenged where necessary. The 
location has a large footfall and is well covered by CCTV. There are other similar shops already 
present with ATM's so at this time I have no further comment in relation to community safety, crime 
and disorder.  
 
The only additional comment I have now having seen the proposed front elevation of the premises 
is that there is a large frontage of glass incorporating the ATM machines - along with a wide area for 
vehicles to manoeuvre if desired. There has in recent years been an increase in thefts of ATM 
machines from the front of premises. There is no mention of security bollards to the front of the shop 
- I do not however know of any local policy in relation to bollards.  
 
This office would however be pleased to discuss any queries the applicant may have in the future in 

19



relation to crime and security. 

Local Residents/Interested Parties 

Initial consultations: 9
Total number of responses: 0
Total number of objections: 0
Total number in support: 0

On the 1st December 2016 an amended plan was received. This plan has been sent out for public 
re-consultation (14-days). Should any additional letters of representation or new information be 
received this will be contained within the Update Report. 

The Peterborough Civic Society have responded as follows;

The alterations are out of scale and character with the remaining parts of the elevation. The overall 
effect would be to have an over dominant appearance in the street scene. This stone clad, five bay 
frontage has a symmetrical, verticality which has a hint of Art-Deco seriously compromised by the 
deep and plain fascia boards. The proposal to cut back a part of the first floor to create a banking 
hall is a good one which will create a more lively elevation. It is suggested that the existing vertical 
form be carried down to the ground floor with the five-bay rhythm replaced with a canopy/fascia 
having one central bay extending over the three central windows. The canopy should perhaps be 
fairly narrow and project more in the central bay and less far in the two side bays. The solid stone 
clad sections to the left and right edges could be reinstated to re-emphasize the vertical character 
and give a visual solidity to the elevation. In essence we feel that alterations to the elevation should 
be confined to the ground floor.

5 Assessment of the planning issues

Design and Impact on the Conservation Area and other Heritage Assets 
Policies CC3, CS16 and PP2 seek to ensure any development would not have an adverse impact 
on the character of the area. Policies CS17 and PP17 seek to ensure the proposal would not have 
an adverse impact on the setting of the Conservation Area, adjacent Listed Buildings or buildings of 
local interest. 

The Conservation Officer objects to the proposal, advising that the proposed shopfront alterations 
do not respect the host building, nor would they preserve this section of the Conservation Area. The 
reason for this is that the design approach is clearly at odds with respect to the wider building group 
to the east side of Long Causeway. 

The built form to the east side of Long Causeway is continuous and provides enclosure to the street.  
Buildings are predominantly early to mid-Victorian age and of three storey form. Many buildings have 
good first and second floor detailing that adds interest to the street.  The ground floors have a typical 
glazed shopfront appearance and the upper floors are intact. The buildings recall the 'old market 
town' character of Peterborough and have group value in the street scene.  

The proposed design, scale and materials are considered to be excessive and would diminish the 
presence of the building. Over half the front elevation would be replaced in a very contemporary 
manner making the building an unwarranted focal point, this proposal would therefore have an 
unacceptably adverse impact upon the rhythm of the east side of Long Causeway. 

This proposal would therefore significantly change the character of the building and the wider group 
value to the street as no single building is dominant within the street scene. As such the proposed 
shop front alterations would not preserve or enhance this section of the City Centre Conservation 
Area and would be contrary to Policies CS16 and CS17 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD 
(2011), Policies PP2 and PP17 Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012), Policy CC3 of the 
Peterborough City Centre Plan (2014), the adopted Shop Front design Guidance (2014) and the 

20



National Planning Policy Framework (2012).

Officers raise no objection to the proposed works at the rear of the building, or the provision of ATM's, 
however as these works from part of this scheme the application is refused as submitted. 

Neighbour Amenity 
Policy PP3 seeks to ensure that any development would not result in an unacceptable overbearing 
impact, loss of privacy, light or amenity. 

The application site is situated within the City Centre, and whilst the adjacent uses are occupied as 
banks (A2 use) there are residential properties to the rear. The proposed external works at the front 
of the building would not impact on the amenity of adjoining occupiers, and given the works proposed 
at the rear of the site are essentially replacement and/or repair works, for example no new windows 
are proposed, the proposed scheme would not impact upon the amenity of the residential properties 
to rear. 

As such the proposed works would not impact upon the amenity of adjoining occupiers or the 
residential properties to the rear, and the proposal would accord with Policy CS16 of the 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and PP3 of the Peterborough Policies DPD (2012). 

Access and Highway Safety
The Local Highway Authority queried whether any of the proposed shop front alterations would 
encroach onto highway land, however the Agent has confirmed that the proposed works would be 
on their land. The Local Highway Authority has also commented that the proposed ATMs and works 
to the rear of the building would not cause any highway safety concerns. As such the proposal would 
accord with Policy PP12 of the Peterborough Policies DPD (2012).  

Crime and Security
The Police Architectural Liaison Officer (PALO) has reviewed the proposal and raised no objection, 
however has noted that due to an increase in theft of ATM's, the PALO has queried whether any 
bollards have been considered. No bollards are considered necessary as part of this application as 
vehicle access onto Long Causeway is controlled, and given the amount of CCTV coverage in the 
City Centre a vehicle travelling in the wrong direction from Cowgate would likely be noticed.

6 Conclusions

The proposal is unacceptable having been assessed in light of all material considerations, including 
weighing against relevant policies of the development plan and for the specific reasons given below.

7 Recommendation

The Director of Growth and Regeneration recommends that Planning Permission is REFUSED
 
R 1 The proposed shop front alterations by reason of design, scale and materials would 

unacceptably diminish the presence of the host building within the street scene, and would 
result in an incongruous, dominant and out of keeping feature that would be at odds with the 
respect to the wider building group to the east side of Long Causeway. The proposed shop 
front alterations do not respect the host building or preserve the character or appearance of 
this section of the City Centre Conservation area, and the proposal is therefore contrary to 
Policies CS16 and CS17 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011), Policies PP2 and 
PP17 Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012) and the Peterborough City Council Shop 
Front Design Guidance (2014).

21



This page is intentionally left blank

22



23



This page is intentionally left blank

24



Planning and EP Committee 20 December 2016 Item 2

Application Ref: 16/01751/ADV 

Proposal: One internally illuminated projecting sign and one internally illuminated 
fascia sign, two non-illuminated blue fascia level signs, two non-
illuminated logo door handles and 4x internally illuminated ATM signs

Site: 29 Long Causeway, Peterborough, PE1 1YJ, 
Applicant: Metro Bank PLC
Agent: Mr Mark Underwood

Deloitte LLP

Referred by: Head of Planning 
Reason: Wider public interest

Site visit: 27.09.2016

Case officer: Mr M A Thomson
Telephone No. 01733 453478
E-Mail: matt.thomson@peterborough.gov.uk

Recommendation:  REFUSE  

1 Description of the site and surroundings and Summary of the proposal

Site Description
The application site is a three storey stone faced building which occupies a prominent position within 
the City Centre, situated on Long Causeway. The building is of mid-twentieth century construction 
and has a distinctive symmetrical design of five bays. The proportionality of the building gives a 
vertical emphasis with a simple rhythm. 

The property is occupied as A1 retail, of which there is a full length canopy at ground floor along the 
frontage of the building. Adjoining land uses include banks at ground floor with what appear to be 
offices above. Immediately in front of the application site is a new meeting place, known as the Green 
Square, which forms part of the extensive city-centre public realm works undertaken by the Council, 
with the eastern access to Queensgate Shopping Centre beyond. 

The site is situated within the City Conservation Area, and there are a number of listed buildings and 
locally listed buildings within the wider shop frontage on Long Causeway. 

Proposal
The Applicant seeks advertisement consent for the following works; 

One internally illuminated projecting sign and one internally illuminated fascia sign (lettering only), 
two non-illuminated blue fascia level signs, two non-illuminated logo door handles and 4x internally 
illuminated ATM signs.

The proposed projecting sign would be 0.57m (h) x 1m (d) x 700mm (w) and would be situated 3m 
above ground level. Lettering would be no taller than 35cm. The signage would be constructed out 
of aluminium utilising a blue background with a stainless steel trim, with red and white text. The 
letters to this sign would be internally illuminated. 

25



The proposed facia sign would be 1m (h) x 150mm (d) x 9.2m (w) and would be situated 2.8m 
above ground level. Lettering would be no taller than 700mm. The signage would be constructed 
out of aluminium utilising a blue background with a stainless steel trim, with red and white text. The 
letters to this sign would be internally illuminated. Two matching fascia boards in a matching blue 
colour are proposed either side. 

Two non-illuminated door handles and 4x internally lit ATM signs are also proposed; there would 
be 2 signs per ATM. 

The proposal as described reflects the revisions to the scheme as originally submitted. 

A separate planning application to undertake shop front alterations has also been submitted under 
App Ref: 16/01750/FUL.

2 Planning History

Reference Proposal Decision Date
16/01750/FUL External alterations to shopfront and rear 

elevation and installation of ATMs
Pending 
Decision 

3 Planning Policy

Decisions must be taken in accordance with the development plan policies below, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise.

Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

Section 66 - General duty as respects listed buildings in exercise of planning functions 
The Local Planning Authority has a statutory duty to have special regard to the desirability of 
preserving the building or its setting, or any features of special architectural or historic interest which 
it possesses.

Section 72 - General duty as respects conservation areas in exercise of planning functions. 
The Local Planning Authority has a statutory duty to have special regard to the desirability of 
preserving the Conservation Area or its setting, or any features of special architectural or historic 
interest which it possesses.

National Planning Policy Framework (2012)

Section 12 - Conservation of Heritage Assets 
Account should be taken of the desirability of sustaining/enhancing heritage assets; the positive 
contribution that they can make to sustainable communities including economic viability; and the 
desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local character and distinctiveness.  
When considering the impact of a new development great weight should be given to the asset’s 
conservation.  

Planning permission should be refused for development which would lead to substantial harm to or 
total loss of significance unless this is necessary to achieve public benefits that outweigh the 
harm/loss.  In such cases all reasonable steps should be taken to ensure the new development will 
proceed after the harm/ loss has occurred.

26



Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011)

CS16 - Urban Design and the Public Realm 
Design should be of high quality, appropriate to the site and area, improve the public realm, address 
vulnerability to crime, be accessible to all users and not result in any unacceptable impact upon the 
amenities of neighbouring residents.

CS17 - The Historic Environment 
Development should protect, conserve and enhance the historic environment including non-
scheduled nationally important features and buildings of local importance.

Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012)

PP02 - Design Quality 
Permission will only be granted for development which makes a positive contribution to the built and 
natural environment; does not have a detrimental effect on the character of the area; is sufficiently 
robust to withstand/adapt to climate change; and is designed for longevity.

PP03 - Impacts of New Development 
Permission will not be granted for development which would result in an unacceptable loss of privacy, 
public and/or private green space or natural daylight; be overbearing or cause noise or other 
disturbance, odour or other pollution; fail to minimise opportunities for crime and disorder.

PP11A - (a) Shop Frontages (including signage) 
Permission will only be granted if the design is sympathetic, it would not harm the character and 
appearance of the street and advertisements are incorporated as an integral part of the design.

PP12 - The Transport Implications of Development 
Permission will only be granted if appropriate provision has been made for safe access by all user 
groups and there would not be any unacceptable impact on the transportation network including 
highway safety.

PP17 - Heritage Assets 
Development which would affect a heritage asset will be required to preserve and enhance the 
significance of the asset or its setting.  Development which would have detrimental impact will be 
refused unless there are overriding public benefits.

Peterborough City Centre DPD (2014)

PCC03A - City Core Policy Area (a) General principles 
The Council will seek development of the highest quality which strengthens the area as the retail, 
leisure, tourism and civic focus for Peterborough and its sub-region.  New development must: 
improve the quality of the public realm; protect important views of the Cathedral; preserve or enhance 
the heritage assets of the area; and protect and enhance existing retail areas.  The Council will also 
support development which results in a net increase in dwellings, improved connectivity, 
employment, conservation of historic shop fronts and development which encourages trips into the 
City Centre.

Peterborough Local Plan 2016 to 2036 (Preliminary Draft)
This document sets out the planning policies against which development will be assessed. It will 
bring together all the current Development Plan Documents into a single document. Consultation on 
this document runs from 15 January to 25 February 2016. 

At this preliminary stage the policies cannot be afforded any weight with the exception of the 
calculation relating to the five year land supply as this is based upon the updated Housing Needs 
Assessment and sites which have planning permission or which are subject to a current application. 
Individual policies are not therefore referred to further in this report.

27



Peterborough Shop Front Design Guide (2014)

4 Consultations/Representations

PCC Conservation Officer (01.12.16)
No objection - The proposed signage, as amended, now proposes one projecting illuminated fascia 
sign and one central fascia where only the lettering is now illuminated and not the fascia as well.  
The level of illumination should match elsewhere to avoid an over bright effect.

PCC Transport & Engineering Services (05.10.16)
No objection - The Local Highway Authority (LHA) have raised no objection, advising that the 
proposed levels of illumination are suitable for the City Centre and are of sufficient ground clearance. 

As such subject to attaching conditions with respect to levels of illumination and static lighting the 
LHA have raised no objection.

Local Residents/Interested Parties 

Initial consultations: 9
Total number of responses: 1
Total number of objections: 0
Total number in support: 0

The Peterborough Civic Society have responded however their comments relate to the shop front 
alterations. These have been included for reference. 

The alterations propose, which encompass the ground and first floor parts of the existing elevation 
are out of scale and character with the remaining parts of the elevation. The overall effect would be 
to have an over dominant appearance in the street scene. This stone clad, five bay frontage has a 
symmetrical, verticality which has a hint of Art-Deco seriously compromised by the deep and plain 
fascia boards. The proposal to cut back a part of the first floor to create a banking hall is a good one 
which will create a more lively elevation. It is suggested that the existing vertical form be carried 
down to the ground floor with the five-bay rhythm replaced with a canopy/fascia having one central 
bay extending over the three central windows. The canopy should perhaps be fairly narrow and 
project more in the central bay and less far in the two side bays. The solid stone clad sections to the 
left and right edges could be reinstated to re-emphasize the vertical character and give a visual 
solidity to the elevation. In essence we feel that alterations to the elevation should be confined to the 
ground floor.

5 Assessment of the planning issues

Design and Impact on the Conservation Area and other Heritage Assets
Policies CS16, PP2 and PP11 seek to ensure that any development including advertisements would 
not have an adverse impact on the character of the area. Policies CS17 and PP17 seek to ensure 
that the proposal would not have an adverse impact on the setting of the Conservation Area, adjacent 
Listed Buildings or buildings of local interest. 

The scheme as amended now utilises a central fascia with internally illuminated lettering and a single 
internally illuminated projecting sign. The level of illumination is considered to be appropriate from a 
highway safety perspective, however the method of illumination is particularly important given that 
the site is situated within a Conservation Area and given the requirements of the Council's Shop 
Front Design Guide (2014). The Conservation Officer has raised no objection, however should 
advertisement consent be granted details of illumination could be secured by planning condition. 

The merits of creating a first floor glazed opening has been discussed as part of the FUL planning 
application, which could provide a holistic and sympathetic shop front to address Green Square 
directly opposite, however the accompanying FUL planning application for shopfront alterations is 
not supported. Therefore whilst the adverts as amended are in themselves considered to be 

28



appropriate by Officers, the adverts could not be implemented in accordance with the submitted 
drawings. For example it would not be clear how the signs would be affixed to the building and the 
lower sections of the first floor windows would be screened by the proposed fascia sign, which is 
resisted by the Shop Front Design Guide. 

Therefore if this advert application was approved as submitted, only the adverts themselves could 
be put in place, which without an acceptable shop front this would result in an incongruous 
arrangement of signage out of keeping within the street scene, this part of the Conservation Area 
and the building itself. 

As such the advertisements would have an unacceptable adverse impact on the character and 
appearance of the host building and Conservation Area, and would be contrary to Policies CS16 and 
CS17 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011), PP2, PP11 and PP17 of the Peterborough 
Policies DPD (2012) and Policy CC3 of the Peterborough City Centre Plan (2014).

Neighbour Amenity 
Policy PP3 seeks to ensure that any development would not result in an unacceptable overbearing 
impact, loss of privacy, light or amenity. 

The application site is situated within the City Centre, and whilst there are a number of residential 
properties within the City Centre the upper floors of the adjoining and adjacent properties are not 
occupied as residential. Therefore given the juxtaposition and orientation of the proposed signage, 
it is not considered the proposal would have an unacceptable level of intrusion, annoyance or 
disturbance to residents, and subject to conditions appropriate lighting levels would not impact upon 
adjacent business occupiers. 

Access and Highway Safety 
The Local Highway Authority have reviewed the submitted information and raised no objection. The 
proposed levels of illumination are considered to be appropriate to this City Centre location and are 
of sufficient ground clearance. Should consent be granted conditions could be secured with respect 
to levels of, and the use of static methods of, illumination, and the proposal would not constitute a 
highway safety hazard.

6 Conclusions

The proposal is unacceptable having been assessed in light of all material considerations, including 
weighing against relevant policies of the development plan and for the specific reasons given below.

7 Recommendation

Director of Growth and Regeneration recommends that Consent to Display Advertisements is 
REFUSED
 
R 1 The proposed adverts could not be implemented in accordance with the submitted details, 

and if approved the signs would be situated in an incongruous arrangement given the facade 
of the building and context of the area. As such the proposed signage would have an 
unacceptable adverse impact on the character and appearance of the host building, street 
scene and this section of the City Conservation Area, and would be contrary to Policies CS16 
and CS17 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011), PP2, PP11 and PP17 of the 
Peterborough Policies DPD (2012), Policy CC3 of the Peterborough City Centre Plan (2014), 
the Town and Country Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as 
amended) and the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012), the adopted Shop Front 
design Guidance (2014).

29



This page is intentionally left blank

30



31



This page is intentionally left blank

32



Planning and EP Committee 20 December 2016    Item 3

Application Ref: 16/02049/FUL 

Proposal: Proposed five-bed single storey dwelling

Site: Firwood, First Drift, Wothorpe, Stamford
Applicant: Mr Simon Robinson

Agent: Mr Jon Gibbison

Referred by: Wothorpe Parish Council and Cllr Over
Reason: Request that the application is debated at Planning Committee
Site visit: 01.12.2016

Case officer: Mrs J MacLennan
Telephone No. 01733 454438
E-Mail: janet.maclennan@peterborough.gov.uk

Recommendation:  REFUSE  

1 Description of the site and surroundings and Summary of the proposal

Site and surroundings
The application site is approximately 0.19 hectares and is part of the rear garden area to ‘Firwood’ 
which is a long narrow cottage of an attractive arts and crafts style which is orientated perpendicular 
to First Drive, Wothorpe.  Wothorpe is an area of low density residential development set in mature 
grounds. As such it has a semi-rural character which blends into the open countryside surrounding 
the village. Because of its distinct character the village has been designated as a Special Character 
Area (SCA) under policy SA19 of the Peterborough Site Allocations DPD. 

Until relatively recently the built form of the settlement was characterised by large dwellings set on 
large plots however, over recent years there have been several ‘backland’ and ‘infill’ developments.  
Firwood is located on the south western side of First Drift and the rear garden area abuts the open 
countryside and falls away to a shallow valley.  Properties within the immediate context have avoided 
the sub-division of plots and subsequent backland development.  The rear gardens are generous 
and assimilate into the open countryside beyond.
 
Proposal
The application seeks approval for the erection of a single storey bespoke 5 bedroom bungalow with 
integral garage. The dwelling would be positioned 14.5m to the rear of ‘Firwood’ and would have a 
footprint of approximately 26.5m x 20m and a height varying from 3m to 4m. 

The dwelling would be accessed via a shared access off First Drift which would divide into two 
independent driveways.

The proposal would include the demolition of existing garages and shed as well as the rebuilding of 
a new garage for Firwood adjacent to the existing house. 

The dwelling would be designed to full accessibility standards specifically to accommodate the 
applicants’ son who is severely disabled.

33



2 Planning History

Reference Proposal Decision Date
13/00087/FUL Erection of Detached House and 

replacement garage
Refused 25/03/2013

P0920/79 Erection of one dwelling (outline) Refused 12/10/1979

Both these refusals were subject to appeals and both were dismissed.

3 Planning Policy

Decisions must be taken in accordance with the development plan policies below, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise.

National Planning Policy Framework (2012)

Section 7 - Good Design 
Development should add to the overall quality of the area; establish a strong sense of place; optimise 
the site potential; create and sustain an appropriate mix of uses; support local facilities and transport 
networks; respond to local character and history while not discouraging appropriate innovation; 
create safe and accessible environments which are visually attractive as a result of good architecture 
and appropriate landscaping. Planning permission should be refused for development of poor 
design.

Section 6 - Backland Development 
Inappropriate development of residential gardens where harm would be caused to the local area 
should be resisted.

Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011)

CS01 - Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside 
The location/ scale of new development should accord with the settlement hierarchy. Development 
in the countryside will be permitted only where key criteria are met.

CS02 - Spatial Strategy for the Location of Residential Development 
Provision will be made for an additional 25 500 dwellings from April 2009 to March 2026 in strategic 
areas/allocations.

CS10 - Environment Capital 
Development should make a clear contribution towards the Council’s aspiration to become 
Environment Capital of the UK.

CS14 - Transport 
Promotes a reduction in the need to travel, sustainable transport, the Council’s UK Environment 
Capital aspirations and development which would improve the quality of environments for residents.

CS16 - Urban Design and the Public Realm 
Design should be of high quality, appropriate to the site and area, improve the public realm, address 
vulnerability to crime, be accessible to all users and not result in any unacceptable impact upon the 
amenities of neighbouring residents.

CS20 - Landscape Character 
New development should be sensitive to the open countryside. Within the Landscape Character 
Areas development will only be permitted where specified criteria are met.

34



Peterborough Site Allocations DPD (2012)

SA19 - Special Character Areas 
To preserve the character of Wothorpe, Thorpe Road and Ashton proposals will be assessed against 
specific criteria in respect of garden sub-division, extensions and alterations, design including site 
analysis and trees. Proposals for Wothorpe will also be considered against an additional criterion in 
respect of landscape character.

Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012)

PP02 - Design Quality 
Permission will only be granted for development which makes a positive contribution to the built and 
natural environment; does not have a detrimental effect on the character of the area; is sufficiently 
robust to withstand/adapt to climate change; and is designed for longevity.

PP03 - Impacts of New Development 
Permission will not be granted for development which would result in an unacceptable loss of privacy, 
public and/or private green space or natural daylight; be overbearing or cause noise or other 
disturbance, odour or other pollution; fail to minimise opportunities for crime and disorder.

PP04 - Amenity Provision in New Residential Development 
Proposals for new residential development should be designed and located to ensure that they 
provide for the needs of the future residents.

PP12 - The Transport Implications of Development 
Permission will only be granted if appropriate provision has been made for safe access by all user 
groups and there would not be any unacceptable impact on the transportation network including 
highway safety.

PP13 - Parking Standards 
Permission will only be granted if appropriate parking provision for all modes of transport is made in 
accordance with standards.

PP16 - The Landscaping and Biodiversity Implications of Development 
Permission will only be granted for development which makes provision for the retention of trees and 
natural features which contribute significantly to the local landscape or biodiversity.

PP17 - Heritage Assets 
Development which would affect a heritage asset will be required to preserve and enhance the 
significance of the asset or its setting.  Development which would have detrimental impact will be 
refused unless there are overriding public benefits.

Peterborough Local Plan 2016 to 2036 (Preliminary Draft)
This document sets out the planning policies against which development will be assessed. It will 
bring together all the current Development Plan Documents into a single document. Consultation on 
this document ran from 15 January to 25 February 2016. 

At this preliminary stage the polices cannot be afforded any weight with the exception of the 
calculation relating to the five year land supply as this is based upon the updated Housing Needs 
Assessment and sites which have planning permission or which are subject to a current application. 
Individual policies are not therefore referred to further in this report.

35



Design and Development in Selected Villages SPD (2011)

4 Consultations/Representations

Archaeological Officer  - No objections -  The proposed development is unlikely to affect important 
buried remains.

PCC Transport & Engineering Services – No objections - The proposed development is served 
from First Drift which is a private road, the construction of one dwelling will not have a detrimental 
impact on the surrounding highway network.

PCC Building Control - The driveway must be constructed to be suitable for reversing fire service 
vehicles

PCC Tree Officer – No objections - Within the site boundary is a group of six Ash subject to Tree 
Preservation Order (TPO) 01/2013. Supporting the application is a Tree Survey which identifies the 
tree resource and plots them on a plan. However, the report was not produced in relation to the 
layout of the site and therefore it doesn't provide an interpretation on in the impact of the proposal 
on the TPO and remaining trees, or how the trees will affect the proposal. The layout/ design for the 
proposal takes into account the relationship to trees and sufficient space is retained in order to retain 
all significant trees.  There appears to be room to accommodate the proposal from a desktop point 
of view but root protection areas etc haven't been applied.  It is likely that the proposal is feasible but 
with certain caveats. The tree report identifies the removal of a number of low quality trees (including 
those subject to a TPO). As the proposal is to the south of the trees shading is unlikely to be a 
significant issue. Also being a single storey dwelling there will be less problems with future growth 
in contrast to a two storey dwelling. It is likely that the impact on the root protection area of the 
retained trees would be low. However, the impact of construction, storage of material, access and 
the final landscaping could accumulatively be significant.  A Tree Protection condition is 
recommended.

PCC Rights of Way Officer - No concerns regarding the Public Right of Way

PCC Conservation Officer – Objects - Planning permission was refused under Ref: 113/00087/FUL 
for a substantial sized building with separate access off First Drift.  This was refused for reasons that 
the sub-division of the plot would harm the form and pattern of this part of the village, which has so 
far avoided backland development and would affect the appreciation of the village setting, viewed 
from the public right of way to the west. The subsequent planning appeal was dismissed and the 
Inspectors Report, particularly paras 9 and 10 detail the inspectors agreement with the Local 
Planning Authority on this matter. It is appreciated that the agent has proposed a substantially 
different building, in order to reduce its dominance and now with a shared access with Firwood. 
However, it is the principle of sub-division of the site, in this part of the village, that is the issue and 
that this should be avoided. The principle of the unacceptability of subdivision was agreed in the 
Inspector's decision. Indeed in para 9, the Inspector's report makes reference to the consequence 
of approving development for setting a precedent …"that allowing this appeal would make it difficult 
for the council to resist other proposals for backland development within the curtilage of other plots 
on this side of First Drift, with the result that the character of this part of the village and neighbouring 
countryside could be progressively eroded". 

It is considered that for the same reasons as the earlier proposal, the development would be highly 
visible in views of the settlement from the open countryside and rising land to the west. 
Notwithstanding the changed scale and form of the proposed dwelling, and this impact would be 
compounded by similar development to neighbouring plots. The proposal would harm the low density 
character and appearance of this part of the settlement, and this view is supported by the Planning 
Inspectorate. 

36



Ramblers (Central Office) - No comments regarding the application.
 
Wothorpe Parish Council – Recommends the application is discussed at Planning Committee – 
The planning issues surrounding this application and the needs of the Robinson family should be 
brought together in order that a balanced determination may be made. We do not believe that we 
have within our Parish Council the experience, the technical knowledge or access to the case 
histories concerning similar situations to make such a determination. Accordingly, we wish 
consideration of this application to be brought before the Planning Committee who will have the 
knowledge and judgement we lack. We also wish that this E mail be made available to the Committee 
members in order that its contents may inform their deliberations.

Local Residents/Interested Parties 

Initial consultations: 5
Total number of responses: 1 (Parish Council)
Total number of objections: 1
Total number in support: 0

Councillor Over -  Fully supports the Parish Council request and it's referral to the planning sub-
committee

5 Assessment of the planning issues

Background
The application site has been subject to a number of planning applications.  In 1979 under reference 
P0920/79 outline planning was refused for the erection of a dwelling and was subsequently 
dismissed at appeal.  More recently a planning application under reference 13/00087/FUL was 
refused for the erection of a two storey dwelling to the rear of Firwood and this was also dismissed 
at appeal. A copy of the 2013 Appeal Decision letter is attached in Appendix 1. 

Earlier this year a pre-application enquiry was submitted for a single storey dwelling.  The Officer’s 
view was that although the proposal for a single storey dwelling was substantially different to the 
former scheme, the principle of the sub-division of the site could not be supported. 

The principle of development
The site lies within the village settlement boundary of Wothorpe, which is a small village located 
close to Stamford.   The principle of residential development within the settlement boundary is 
supported under policy CS2 of the Adopted Peterborough Core Strategy DPD.  The village is a 
relatively sustainable location, being close to services and facilities in the nearby town of Stamford, 
however, the proposal would be ‘backland’ development and the National Planning Policy 
Framework advises that the development of domestic gardens should not be supported where it 
would cause harm.  

Wothorpe is designated as a Special Character Area under Policy SA19 of the Site Allocations DPD.  
The policy sets out specific criteria for assessing proposals for development in SCAs. The first of 
these criteria, states that there should be no subdivision of gardens if this adversely affects the 
character of the area. 

Planning permission was refused under Ref: 13/00087/FUL for a substantial sized two storey 
dwelling with separate access off First Drift.  This was refused as it was considered that the sub-
division of the plot and development to the rear of Firwood would harm the form and pattern of this 
part of the village which has so far avoided ‘backland’ development.  The development would be 
clearly visible when viewed from the public right of way to the west. The subsequent planning appeal 
was dismissed and the Inspectors Decision, particularly paras 9 and 10 supported this matter. (The 
Appeal Decision is appended to this report).  At para 9 the Inspector makes reference to “the soft 
edge of the village in this location and that the unbroken green boundary in this location is an asset 
in its own right which would be devalued if the proposed development was carried out.”  The 

37



Inspector also went on to state the further consequence of approving development for setting a 
precedent …”that allowing this appeal would make it difficult for the Council to resist other proposals 
for backland development on this side of First drift with the result that the character of this part of the 
village and neighbouring countryside could be progressively eroded”. 

At para. 10 of the Appeal Decision the Inspector goes on to refer to how the character of the 
settlement edge at this part of the village would change as a result of the development which would 
be more noticeable in the months when the trees were not in leaf.

It is acknowledged that the proposal is for a single storey dwelling which would have a maximum 
roof height of 4m and would appear less prominent to views from the public right of way.  However  
for the same reasons as the earlier proposal, the development would be highly visible to views of 
the settlement from the open countryside and rising land to the west, notwithstanding the changed 
scale and form of the proposed dwelling.  

There are dwellings to the west of the site at Kopriva and Beck Cottage with similar sized plots and 
to allow development to the rear of Firwood would make proposals for further backland development 
on these plots difficult to resist.  Thus the impact of the character of this part of the village would 
ultimately be compounded by similar development to neighbouring plots. It is considered that the 
proposal would harm the low density character and appearance of this part of the settlement, and 
this view is supported by the Planning Inspectorate. 

It is considered that the principle of the development is not supported as the proposal would be 
unsympathetic to the immediate low density character and appearance of the settlement in this 
location and would be contrary to Policy SA19 of the Adopted Peterborough Site Allocations DPD, 
Policy CS20 of the Adopted Peterborough Core Strategy DPD, section 6 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework and to the advice within the Design and Development in Selected Villages SPD.  

Personal Circumstances
The proposal is to erect a bespoke dwelling due to the personal circumstances of the applicant.  The 
applicants’ son has suffered a spinal cord injury and now requires full time care.  After a long period 
in hospital he is now home in Stamford and he returned to school in September.  The bespoke 
dwelling would provide an environment that would meet his current and future needs, within the 
Stamford area, close to his friends and his school.

The family are renting accommodation in Stamford which is over three floors however this type of 
property is not suitable in the long term as the only accessible area is restricted to the ground floor 
with no access to shower facilities, etc. 

The family have been looking for suitable accommodation, however this has proved very difficult. 
The current housing stock in Stamford is not suitable and Developers of new housing schemes have 
been approached but are not able to adapt current housing designs to meet the family’s needs.

Letters from the G.P and Occupational Community Therapist have been submitted in support of the 
application.

This is a material consideration to be taken in to the balance of planning considerations in 
determining this application.  The Officer empathises with the needs of the family and is sympathetic 
regarding the difficulty of finding suitable accommodation.  However, the personal circumstances are 
given limited weight as it is considered that alternative sites could be found and the personal 
circumstances do not outweigh the principle objections as set out in the appeal decision.

38



Design 
The surrounding development in First Drift is considered to comprise an eclectic mix of styles with 
more traditional development alongside modern styles.  It is considered that the design and style of 
the dwelling would in itself not be out keeping with the surrounding character when viewed in the 
context of development within First Drift.   The dwelling would be finish in red Cedar and white/grey 
render.

In addition the position of the dwelling would be directly to the rear of ‘Firwood’ and as the dwelling 
would be single storey it would not be directly visible from First Drift.

To the front of the site is a brick wall which is protected under policy PP17 of the Adopted 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD.  Part of this wall would need to be removed to accommodate 
the access, however, given the number of access points off First Drift it is not considered that the 
loss of the wall and widening of the access would harm the character of the street sufficient to form 
a reason for refusing the scheme.

The design of the dwelling, should the principle be supported, would therefore comply with the 
principles of policy PP2 of the Adopted Peterborough Planning Policies DPD and policy CS16 of the 
Adopted Peterborough Core Strategy DPD. 

Residential Amenity
The proposal would provide a good level of amenity for the future occupiers.  The dwelling would be 
served with a large garden area, independent driveway and adequate parking provision.  All 
habitable rooms would be provided with natural lighting.

Although the garden area to the host dwelling at ‘Firwood’ would be reduced an adequate garden 
area would be retained.

The dwelling would be single storey and positioned some 14m from the host dwelling, thus there 
would be no overbearing impact or loss of amenity to the occupiers of Firwood as a result of the 
development.

A 1.8m high boundary fence would be positioned to the north east of the host dwelling at Firwood 
which would protect the amenity of the occupiers of this property from potential noise and 
disturbance caused by the general activity associated with the proposed dwelling.

The proposal therefore accords with policy PP4 of the Adopted Peterborough Planning Policies DPD.

Neighbouring Amenity
The dwelling would be positioned some 45m to the rear of First Drift.  It would be approximately 5m 
from the shared boundary with the dwelling at ‘Kopriva’ to the south west and this would be at the 
far end of the neighbouring garden. There would be a separation distance of at least 14m to the host 
dwelling at ‘Firwood’.  As the dwelling would be single storey it is not considered that the proposal 
would unduly impact upon the amenity of the neighbouring occupiers, hence the proposal would 
accord with policy PP3 of the Adopted Peterborough Planning Policies DPD and policy CS16 of the 
Adopted Peterborough Core Strategy DPD.

Landscape Implications
The site contains a number of trees including a group of 6 Ash Trees which are the subject of a Tree 
Preservation Order (TPO) 01/2013.  A Tree Survey has been undertaken and supports the 
application.  The report however was produced in relation to the layout of the site and therefore does 
not assess the impact of the proposal on the TPO trees or other remaining trees within the site.  A 
number of low quality trees would be removed.

39



The Tree Officer has assessed the application and considers that the dwelling could be 
accommodated without detriment to the remaining trees subject to appropriate tree protection.  It is 
also considered that as the proposal is to the south of the trees shading is unlikely to be a significant 
issue (although the northern eastern elevation may be very dark in the summer). Also being a single 
storey dwelling there will be less problems with future growth in contrast to a two storey dwelling. It 
is likely that the impact of the development on the root protection areas of the retained trees would 
be low.  A tree protection condition would be appended to the decision to ensure the trees are 
protected during the construction period.

It is considered that the proposed dwelling could be accommodated without impact on trees within 
the site and therefore the proposal would accord with policy PP16 of the Adopted Peterborough 
Planning Policies DPD.

Highway Implications
The proposal will utilise a shared access with Firwood, with the driveways splitting and separating 
within the site. Both driveways are in excess of 4m in width and are adequate in practical terms to 
allow 2 vehicles to pass and safely accommodate the anticipated level of traffic.

First Drift is a private road and there are no implications for the adopted highway.  The proposal 
would provide adequate parking for the new dwelling and for the existing dwelling in accordance with 
policy PP13 of the Adopted Peterborough Planning Policies DPD.

Environment Capital
The application states that the proposed bungalow would exceed current building regulations in 
terms of energy use in accordance with policy CS10 of the Adopted Peterborough Core Strategy 
DPD.

Archaeology
The proposed development is unlikely to affect important buried remains.

6 Conclusions

The proposal is unacceptable having been assessed in light of all material considerations, including 
weighing against relevant policies of the development plan and for the specific reasons given below.

7 Recommendation

The Director of Growth and Regeneration recommends that Planning Permission is REFUSED

The proposed sub-division of the plot and the erection of a new dwelling would be detrimental to the 
pattern of development in this part of Wothorpe which has so far avoided backland development.  
The proposal would be highly visible from views from the open countryside and would be 
unsympathetic to the immediate character of the area and would diminish the special low density 
character and appearance of this part of the village.  The proposal, if successful, would make further 
development in neighbouring plots difficult to resist which would progressively erode the soft edge 
of the settlement boundary with the open countryside.  The personal circumstances of the applicants’ 
family are not considered to be such that the planning policy matters are outweighed.

The proposal is therefore contrary to policy SA19 of the Adopted Peterborough Site Allocations DPD, 
Policy CS20 of the Adopted Peterborough Core Strategy DPD, section 6 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework and to the advice within the Design and Development in Selected Villages SPD.

40



  

 

 
www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate 
 

 

 
 

 

Appeal Decision 
Site visit made on 14 August 2013 

by George Arrowsmith BA, MCD,  MRTPI 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government 

Decision date: 24 September 2013 

 

Appeal Ref: APP/J0540/A/13/2196127 

Land to the rear of Firwood, First Drift, Wothorpe, Stamford. Lincolnshire, 

PE9 3JL 

• The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 against 

a refusal to grant planning permission. 
• The appeal is made by Kelland Developments against the decision of Peterborough City 

Council. 
• The application Ref 13/00087/FUL, dated 18 January 2013, was refused by notice dated 

25 March 2013. 
• The development proposed is a detached house and replacement garage. 

 

Decision 

1. The appeal is dismissed. 

Main Issue 

2. The main issue is whether the proposed development would be detrimental to 

the character of this part of Wothorpe and to that of the nearby open 

countryside. 

Reasons 

3. Wothorpe is an area of low density residential development set in mature 

grounds.  As such it has a semi-rural character which shades easily into the 

open countryside surrounding the village.  Because of its distinct character the 

village has been designated as a Special Character Area (SCA) in the 

Peterborough Site Allocations DPD.  Policy SA19 in that document sets out 

specific criteria for assessing proposals for development in SCAs.  The first of 

these criteria, which says that there should be no subdivision of gardens if this 

adversely affects the character of the area, is particularly relevant. 

4. The officer’s report on the application describes the site and its surroundings as 

follows: “Wothorpe is a village of two streets, First Drift and Second Drift.  

These two streets run parallel for part of their length, for a distance of about 

250m as they run south-east from Kettering Road (the A43).  This means that 

the area between the two roads is developed, with several backland and infill 

developments in previously very large gardens.  However after about 250m 

Second Drift stops, which means that the south west side of First Drift has no 

backland development, rear gardens are generous and connect with the 

Appendix 1

41



Appeal Decision APP/J0540/A/13/2196127 

 

 

 

2 

landscape”.  I agree with this largely objective description.  Firwood, a long 

narrow cottage set at 90 degrees to the frontage, is on the south west side of 

First Drift.  Its rear garden borders open countryside which falls away to a 

shallow valley. 

5. The Council’s main objection to the appeal proposal is that it would result in a 

large house with big windows to the rear of nearby houses and elevated above 

the shallow valley to the south west.  They consider that it would contrast with 

the existing character of this part of First Drift where there is no backland 

development and would be prominent and obtrusive when seen from the 

countryside to the south west, which is crossed by a public footpath.  The 

officer’s report says that the design of the proposed building, which in general 

terms echoes that of other recent developments on First Drift, is not bad in 

itself but is not right for its context.  The Council’s Conservation Team comment 

that, although only partial views of the building would be visible from First Drift, 

the creation of the new vehicular entrance would draw attention to the 

existence of backland development. 

6. I turn first to the effect of the proposal on views of the settlement when seen 

from the surrounding countryside and, by association, on the character of the 

countryside itself.  The new house would be seen from the public footpath which 

runs through the field to the south west of the site but from much of that 

footpath it would be screened by trees and a hedgerow closer to the observer.  

There is however one stretch of footpath from which the house would be clearly 

visible.  When walking the footpath I saw glimpses of existing houses on First 

Drift although they were seen as part of a view that was dominated by trees.  I 

particularly noted a very large new house known as Hexthorpe House just over 

100m to the south east of Firwood.  This extends almost as far to the south 

west of First Drift as would the proposed house.  Views of this new house from 

the footpath are only partial because it is surrounded by trees, but it is still 

visible.   

7. I do not know what considerations led the Council to grant planning permission 

for Hexthorpe House but it appears to have replaced a smaller house known as 

Drift End which occupied the same large grounds but stood further to the north 

east.  As such its development would not have entailed the subdivision of a 

garden. 

8. Apart from the fact that it does not appear to have resulted from the 

subdivision of a garden, the difference between the appeal proposal and 

Hexthorpe House is that the latter is set within an extensive curtilage 

surrounded by mature trees whereas the proposed house proposed would stand 

close to the south western boundary of its curtilage and be separated from the 

countryside beyond only by a 1.2m high post and rail fence.  I am therefore 

satisfied that it would have a greater impact on the appearance on the edge of 

the settlement.  In particular I disagree with the appellant’s view that it would 

be settled into the landscape.  On the contrary I consider that it would be 

prominent when seen from the south west. 

9. An ameliorating factor is that public views from the neighbouring countryside 

are limited to those available from the public footpath which, as discussed 

above, are frequently screened by intervening vegetation.  However, even 

though the house would be visible from only part of the footpath, anyone 

Appendix 1

42



Appeal Decision APP/J0540/A/13/2196127 

 

 

 

3 

walking along the footpath would be aware of its existence, with the 

consequence that the perception of a soft edge to this part of the village would 

be lost.  Whilst there is backland development in other parts of the village the 

unbroken green boundary in this location is an asset in its own right which 

would be devalued if the proposed development was carried out.  There is the 

further consequence that allowing this appeal would make it difficult for the 

Council to resist other proposals for backland development on this side of First 

Drift with the result that the character of this part of the village and the 

neighbouring countryside could be progressively eroded. 

10.I have given some thought to the level of footpath use.  It is clearly not heavily 

used because the sward through the field is unbroken.  Nevertheless it is used 

sufficiently for me to have been able to discern the line of the path.  I am 

therefore satisfied that residents and visitors would be aware that the character 

of the settlement edge had changed.  I also recognise that I viewed the site in 

late summer when the mainly deciduous trees are in full foliage and that both 

existing houses and the proposed house will have a greater impact on the view 

in winter when those trees lose their leaves.  Even so I am satisfied that, 

because of its location, the proposed house would still be more prominent. 

11.I am aware that there is another new house at the point where the footpath 

leaves the built-up part of the village.  As with Hexthorpe House I do not know 

what considerations led the Council to grant planning permission for this house 

but it fits into the general pattern of development at the end of Second Drift 

and can clearly be differentiated from the proposal now before me. 

12.I conclude that the proposed development would be detrimental to the 

character of this part of Wothorpe and to that of the nearby open countryside 

and would therefore conflict with the objectives of policy CS20 in the adopted 

Peterborough Core Strategy DPD, policy SA19 in the adopted Peterborough Site 

Allocations DPD and policy PP2 in the adopted Peterborough Planning Policies 

DPD. 

13.I acknowledge the Council’s concern that the formation of a new drive alongside 

the existing one would detract from the street scene but I give this concern 

relatively little weight given the amount of obvious new development that has 

taken place on First Drift in recent years.  I also acknowledge that the unilateral 

undertaking prepared and signed by the appellant and the opportunity to 

impose a condition relating to the Council’s Environment Capital Agenda 

overcome the second and third reasons for refusal.  These matters do not 

however change my opinion that the proposal is unacceptable because of its 

effect on the character of the village and the surrounding countryside. 

George Arrowsmith 

INSPECTOR 

 

 

Appendix 1

43



This page is intentionally left blank

44



PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL 
PROTECTION COMMITTEE

AGENDA ITEM No. 6

20 DECEMBER 2016 PUBLIC REPORT

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Councillor Hiller - Cabinet Member for Growth, Planning, 
Housing and Economic Development

Reporting Officer: Nick Harding - Head of Planning
Theresa Nicholl – Development Manager

Tel. 454441
Tel. 454442

REVIEW OF LOCAL LIST FOR VALIDATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S
FROM: Corporate Director of Growth and Regeneration Deadline date: December 2016

It is recommended that the Planning and Environmental Protection Committee endorses the 
revisions to the local list.

1. ORIGIN OF REPORT

1.1 This report follows previous reports to Planning and Environmental Committee which have 
updated the local list for validation of planning applications.  The last report went to 
Committee on 3 September 2013.  The list has been republished since then when national 
policy changes have required amendment e.g. the introduction of Sustainable Urban 
Drainage Systems (SUDS).

2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT

2.1 To inform the Committee of the proposed changes to the Local Validation List 
requirements.

2.2 This report is presented to the Committee under terms of reference 2.6.1.6, of Part 3 of the 
Constitution “to assess and review the performance of the services which fall within the 
terms of reference of the Committee.”

3. TIMESCALE 

Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan?

NO If Yes, date for relevant 
Cabinet Meeting

N/A

 4. BACKGROUND

4.1 The Development Management Procedure Order (DMPO) is the main piece of secondary 
legislation (stemming from the main Planning Acts) that sets out how Local Planning 
Authorities (LPAs) must process planning applications from their receipt and validation 
through to determination and appeals.  Planning applications must be submitted with 
particulars that are set out in national requirements and particulars set out in the local list of 
requirements which is determined by each LPA.  This report is mainly concerned with the 
latter.

4.2 The DMPO requires that local requirements must be “reasonable having regard, in 
particular to the nature and scale of the development and about a matter which it is 
reasonable to think will be a material consideration in the determination of the application.”  

45



4.3 The National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) provides additional guidance and further 
detail as to what LPAs can request to accompany an application and how validation should 
be dealt with.  

4.4 When planning applications are received in Planning Services, they are checked to make 
sure they are “valid” i.e. the application contains all of the information and plans necessary 
to enable the case officer to properly assess the proposal and make a recommendation.  
Only when an application is valid is it consulted on and the determination period (8 weeks 
for minors/householder applications and 13 weeks for a major applications) commences.

4.5 The National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) sets out what validation requirements 
are.  A completed application form is always required.  National information requirements 
also include the following:

 Plans and drawings;
 Ownership Certificate and Agricultural Land Declaration;
 Design and Access Statements (for some planning applications); and
 Specific requirements for outline applications and those subject to and 

Environmental Impact Assessment.

4.6 Local information requirements can be set by the Local Planning Authority (LPA) to enable 
the authority to address local circumstances and development plan policy requirements.  
Such requirements must be set out on a formally adopted “local list” which must be 
published.  Peterborough City Council’s local list is published on its website in the Planning 
and Building Control web pages:

www.peterborough.gov.uk/council/planning-and-development

5. REVIEW OF THE LOCAL LIST

5.1 The NPPG requires that Local Planning Authorities review their local lists at least every two 
years.  The requirements of the local list should be driven by statutory requirements, the 
National Planning Policy Framework or the development plan (i.e. Peterborough City 
Council’s planning policies).  In accordance with the NPPG, we have undertaken an eight 
week consultation on the proposed changes to the local list with our regular planning 
agents and our Parish Councils.

5.2 The proposed review of the current local list requirements is set out at Appendix A. The 
key changes can be summarised as follows:

- More clarity on the documents/drawings required for certain types of application;
- Introduction of the need for applications in Flood Zones 2 and 3 (unless on an 

allocated site) to be accompanied by a Sequential Test/Assessment;
- Amend the requirement for Tree or Arboricultural Surveys to include two tiers of 

information (dependent upon the type of application); 
- Clarification on the need for a Structural Survey;
- Merging the need for a Landfill Statement with Land Contamination Assessment;
- Additional requirement for new out-of-centre retail/leisure developments to be 

accompanied by a Sequential Test/Assessment;
- Additional requirement for developments affecting any designated heritage asset to 

be accompanied by a Heritage Statement;
- Additional requirement for major developments to be accompanied by a table setting 

out open space provision; and
- Requirement for reserved matters applications to be accompanied by any additional 

supporting information which is set out in conditions attached to the outline planning 
permission.  

5.3 Five responses have been received to the consultation, two from local agents, two from 
developers and one from Peakirk Parish Council.  The comments received are set out 
below, together with the response to each comment.

46

http://www.peterborough.gov.uk/council/planning-and-development


6. PEAKIRK PARISH COUNCIL

6.1 The Parish Council has commented that the requirements for a Noise Assessment should 
also include vibration so that where new development might give rise to vibration or be 
affected by existing vibration this is adequately assessed alongside noise.

6.2 Response: Vibration could result in disturbance to nearby occupiers or future occupiers of 
new development and could therefore result in non-compliance with policies PP3 and PP4 
of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD.  The Council’s Principal Pollution Control 
Officer agrees that vibration should be included for clarity.  The Local List will therefore be 
amended to include vibration with noise requirements where vibration might be an issue.

7. PLANNING AGENTS AND DEVELOPERS

7.1 Plans – Location Plans - will there be no scale bar or north point needed?  
The current PCC requirements go beyond the requirement set out in the Development 
Management Procedure Order which states the applicant must submit “a plan which 
identifies the land to which the applicant relates.”  The red line does not always need to 
extend to an adopted road.

Response: The current national and local standards for plans are to be retained so a scale 
bar and north point will be required on locations plans.  The current requirements we apply 
to location plans are taken from the NPPG which are more precise and we intend to keep 
those requirements.  However, we will state that only an OS based plan will be required as 
long as that plan is up to date.  We will take a pragmatic approach where it is not possible, 
for example, to name two roads on the plan due to the site location. We agree that the red 
line does not always need to extend to an adopted road but in some cases it is necessary.  
We currently look at this on a case by case basis and will continue to do so.

7.2 Environmental Impact Assessment – concern over what is a green field site and what is 
brownfield as some old abandoned commercial sites may be asked for this.
Environmental Assessment does not need to be a requirement of the local list as the LPA 
must deal with such development in compliance with the EIA regulations.

Response: The requirement for an Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) is determined 
via the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2011.  
Whether an Environmental Statement (ES) is necessary depends on the scale and nature 
of the development and its impact on sensitive areas.  EIA is not particularly about whether 
a site is a green field or a brownfield site.

We have reviewed the Environmental Assessment proposals and agree that we do need to 
set out the requirements on the local list but instead we will provide some guidance on how 
applications will be dealt with where the proposal might be EIA development but the 
application is submitted without an ES.

7.3 Flood Risk Assessment – Only sites in Flood Zone 3 should need a flood risk assessment
Where the application site is allocated for development paragraph 104 of the NPPF states 
that a FRA is not required.

Response: Flood Risk Assessment and the requirements for submission are governed by 
national policy and guidance (NPPF and NPPG), therefore FRA is often required for sites in 
flood zone 2 and sites with critical drainage issues.

We have added clarification to confirm that allocated sites will not require an FRA.

7.4 Tree or Arboricultural Survey - This is excessive and only trees that are covered by a 
tree preservation order or in a conservation area should require a survey. 
Disagree that Tree Protection Plans and Arboricultural Impact Assessments are an arbitrary 
requirement to make applications valid.

47



Response: Policy PP16 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD states that planning 
permission will only be granted where existing trees making a significant contribution to the 
landscape or biodiversity value of the local environment are protected and retained (subject 
to not compromising a good design solution for the site) and the requirement for tree 
surveys is set out in the policy.  The policy does not just refer to trees that are protected by 
Tree Preservation Orders or in Conservation Areas.  Flexibility is built in as the local list 
requirement offers an alternative if advice has been obtained at the pre-application stage 
from the LPA/tree officer which states a tree survey is not required or a more limited 
submission will be acceptable.

There seems to be a misunderstanding about this requirement therefore we have re-
worded it to try to make it clearer.  In most cases a full arboricultural survey will not be 
required and basic information will suffice.  Clarification is also provided in respect of 
reserved matters applications.
  
It has been decided to add this requirement for tree surveys because there are often 
instances where the application form states no trees are present but when the site is visited 
by the case officer this is not the case.  Lack of information about trees causes delays in 
processing applications and therefore our ability to meet government targets.

7.5 Biodiversity Survey and Report – the check list is acceptable.

Response: We note the comment. The current checklist and requirement for surveys if the 
checklist shows this is necessary is being retained as required by policy CS21 of the 
Peterborough Core Strategy and policy PP16 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD

7.6 Archaeological Assessment – this requirement is over the top for some sites near to Flag 
Fen but not inside the Scheduled Monument

Response: Buried archaeological remains outside of Scheduled Monuments or other 
designated areas are described “non designated heritage assets” in the NPPF which also 
requires the LPA to take such assets into account when determining planning applications.  
The scope of the works required will vary from site to site and should be agreed through 
pre-application discussions.  All areas of archaeological potential are protected through 
policy CS17 of the Peterborough Core Strategy and PP17 of the Peterborough Planning 
Policies DPD.

7.7 Structural Survey – Planning applications do not need a structural survey as this is 
covered by building regulations

Response: Policy PP6 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD only allows conversion 
of an agricultural building in the open countryside to residential use if (amongst other 
criteria) it is not in such a state of dereliction or disrepair that significant reconstruction is 
required.  Therefore, a structural survey may be necessary to demonstrate that the building 
is capable of conversion to comply with policy PP6.

Structural surveys are also required where a proposal involves demolition or alteration of 
the historic fabric of listed buildings, locally listed buildings or demolition of certain unlisted 
buildings in conservation areas.

7.8 Transport Assessment – Needs a table of what is considered to be significant.

Response: Paragraph 013 of the NPPG states that local authorities must “take a 
judgement as to what is significant on a case by case basis.”  This is because what might 
be significant in one area in terms of number or type of vehicles generated may not be so 
significant in another area.  Much will also depend on the capacity of the surrounding road 
network, therefore each case must be dealt with on its own merits.  As such we are unable 
to add a table as suggested.

48



7.9 Lifetime Homes details – Registered social landlords think this should only be required for 
50 or more dwellings

Response: Policy CS8 of the Peterborough Core Strategy requires that all developments 
of 15 dwellings or more provide 20 percent of those dwellings to Lifetime Homes 
Standards, hence for such schemes it is necessary for the applicant to demonstrate which 
dwellings will be built to the standard.

7.10 Noise Assessment – Needs to be categorised e.g. A roads or M roads or grade of train 
line or airports (e.g. Sibson)

Response: The NPPG only sets out a table for noise exposure hierarchy. The tables 
categorising noise sources such as roads were removed when the old planning policy 
guidance notes and statements were superseded and replaced with the NPPF (and now 
also the NPPG).  The need for a noise assessment and its content should be dealt with at 
pre-application stage.

7.11 Air Quality Assessment – Criteria are needed

Response: The NPPG states that Air Quality Assessment should be proportionate to the 
nature and scale of the development and provides sources of obtaining information to 
assist with the production of an AQA.  It does not contain standard criteria.

7.12 Open Space – This needs to be based on number of dwellings rather than the area and 
there are too many categories in the table.  It needs to be mixed space as play grounds are 
not maintained or liked by registered social landlords.

Policy PP14 and Appendix B do not refer to LAPs, LEAPS etc. so clarification is needed on 
the terminology used to reflect the policy.  The current average household size for 
Peterborough should be added for assistance.

Response: Open space standards are currently set out in policy PP14 and Appendix B to 
the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD.  The standards are based on population numbers 
(which can be extrapolated into number dwellings according to dwelling sizes proposed).  
Only residential developments require public open space. The type of space required and 
set out in the table reflects the emerging Open Space Strategy and draft Local Plan.  It is 
anticipated that developments requiring public open space will be subject to pre-application 
discussions i.e. this could be developments of 10 dwellings or more.

The table has been revised to reflect the current development plan policy terminology and 
also the emerging policy terminology.  The average household size for Peterborough has 
been added.

7.13 Advertisements – Pictures would be better of examples of existing ones to reduce the cost 
of drawings.

Response: We have offered an alternative of either scale drawings or 
photographs/photomontages showing the proposed signs superimposed in the proposed 
locations.  We cannot accept pictures of other signs shown in different locations to that 
proposed as approved (or refused) plans or drawings need to accurately reflect the 
proposals for the site concerned.  The NPPG states (in line with the advertisement 
regulations) that the local planning authority can only take “amenity” and “public safety” into 
account when determining applications for advertisement consent.  It is essential to 
understand therefore the exact location, position, size, design and illumination of all the 
proposed signs in order to make that judgement.

49



8. FURTHER CONSIDERATIONS

8.1 Further to the above responses made above, it should also be borne in mind that;

Information requested with a particular planning application must be:
 Reasonable having regard, in particular, to the nature and scale of the proposed 

development; and
 About a matter which it is reasonable to think will be a material consideration in the 

determination of the application

8.2 These are statutory tests and are set out in Section 62 (4a) of the Town and Country 
Planning Act and Article 11(3) (c) of the Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) Order 2015.

8.3 The proposed revised local list includes all potential requirements to cover each application 
type and the scale and nature of the development.  Most of the local list requirements will 
not apply to householder and very small scale development. 

8.4 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that LPAs have a key role to play 
in encouraging other parties to take maximum advantage of pre-application engagement.  
To avoid delay, applicants should discuss what information is needed (to accompany a 
planning application) with the LPA and expert bodies as early as possible.  Peterborough 
City Council Planning Services offers a pre-application service the details of which are set 
out on the planning pages of the PCC website.  It is considered that local agents are aware 
of this service.  Agents and applicants are encouraged to use this service because amongst 
the benefits this early engagement provides the LPA will be able to set out what the local 
list submission requirements will be.  The pre-application response can therefore be 
submitted with an application to serve as a “check-list” as to what is required from the local 
list, making validation of the application simpler and quicker.  Pre-application advice can 
help deal with those areas where there is a degree of flexibility as to what should be 
submitted or where a developer may be unsure.  This will include reserved matters 
applications where we would expect there to be some discussion beforehand as to what 
should be submitted.

8.5 Note: Where a condition on an outline specifically requires that certain information must be 
submitted with a particular reserved matter, that information must be submitted when the 
reserved matters application is submitted.

8.6 It is intended that the fees for pre-application advice will be reviewed early in 2017 and 
reported to Committee.

9. CONCLUSION

9.1 The revised local list sets out the information requirements across all topic areas and each 
is related to a national or local plan policy requirement.  Which requirements are needed for 
an individual planning application will depend on the nature and scale of the application.  
Developers are encouraged to use the pre-application advice service to obtain early 
agreement with the LPA as to what will be required to be submitted to make an application 
valid. 

 
9.2 The Local List will be reviewed again in two years’ time or upon adoption of the new Local 

Plan whichever is sooner.  This review will be reported to Committee.  Minor changes might 
be needed in the interim and the planning pages of the website will be updated by officers 
as necessary to reflect such changes. 
 

9.3 It is recommended that Committee endorses the revised Local List.

50



10. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES

10.1 If applicants/agents submit applications in accordance with the revised local list 
requirements and use the pre-application service where advised to do so, there will be 
fewer invalid applications.  There would likely be less need for officers to request further 
information during consideration of the application.  This then would aid the determination 
of applications within the government’s target timescales.

10.2 However, sometimes there are disagreements that arise in terms of validation 
requirements.  Applicants/agents do have the opportunity to formally challenge when an 
application is made invalid through a procedure set out in Article 12 of the Town and 
Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) Order (as amended).  This 
procedure was introduced in 2013 and since that time, the Council has only received one 
challenge which is currently ongoing.  It is not anticipated that the changes proposed would 
substantially increase Article 12 challenges.  

11. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

11.1 In accordance with Section 62(3) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Part 11 
(3) (d) of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) Order, 
local authorities may only require information in addition to that on the national list of 
requirements, if the local list has been published or republished in the previous two years 
from submission of an application.

12. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

12.1 An alternative option would be to have no local list.  However, this would result in undue 
delay in determination of applications due to a lack of information and more refusals of 
planning permission if the information were not to be forthcoming.  The Local Planning 
Authority’s performance would be detrimentally affected.

13. IMPLICATIONS

13.1 There are no additional resource implications as a result of this report.  There will be no 
impact on other service areas.

12. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

14.1 None.

13. APPENDICES

15.1 Appendix A – Currently Local List Validation Requirements with Proposals for Review.

51



This page is intentionally left blank

52



APPENDIX A

Current Local List validation requirements with proposals for review          

Design and Access Statement 

Required for major development and specified development within a Conservation Area

Review: Retain as required by the Town and Country Planning Development Management 
Procedure Order 2015 (as amended).  Label as a National Requirement.  Applicants should 
see paragraph 30 of the National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) for specific 
exclusions.

Plans 
(E.g. existing and proposed elevations, existing and proposed floor layout plans, block plans 
etc.)  

All plans must be drawn to a recognised scale (with a scale bar) or have measurements 
marked on.

Review: Retain but add clarification for change of use applications (below).  The exact plans 
required will depend on the nature of the proposed development as fully set out in the 
Council’s “Apply for Planning or Building Regulations” pages on the Peterborough City 
Council website.  We will make it clearer as to which are national requirements and which 
are local requirements.

Location Plans – Amend to say the plan must be OS based but retain requirements for 2 
mains roads to be shown and all of surrounding land (except where there are not two named 
roads nearby), it must show the whole application site, a north point and scale bar. 

Provide further clarification on when the red line will need to go up to an adoptable highway 
and examples when this might not be needed;  For a brand new development (including a 
new dwelling) the red line should include the access up to an adopted highway or in some 
cases publicly accessible street maintained by the developer/management company (in the 
case of some newer residential developments).  Where the proposal is set within an 
established development and is small scale the red line may not need to go all the way up to 
the highway e.g. a mobile classroom within an existing school site, a small extension within 
an existing business site).

Applications for change of use only, will always require a location plan and block plan.  
Elevations will not be required if there are no changes proposed to the external elevations.  
The requirement for floor plans will depend on the nature of the change of use application 
e.g. if it is change of use from commercial to residential we will wish to see floor plans to 
assess impacts on habitable rooms; if it is a change of use to multiple uses we will wish to 
see floor plans to assess the relationship between the different uses and to assess parking 
requirements.  

Environmental Impact Assessment

Required in certain circumstances as defined by the Town and Country (Environmental 
Impact Assessment) Regulations 2011.

Review: We propose to retain as existing but will be providing a link to some guidance as to 
how applications that are potentially EIA development will be dealt with.

53



Flood Risk Assessment

Required depending on the scale and type of development proposed and whether the site is 
in an area at risk of flooding in accordance with Footnote 20 attached to part 10 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework “Meeting the Challenge of Climate Change, Flooding 
and Coastal Change.”

Review:  Retain with clarification of the following matter;

Where a Sequential Test is required in accordance with paragraph 103 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), the applicant is required to provide the evidence to 
demonstrate the Sequential Test is passed with the submitted application (normally as part 
of a FRA).  This is required by paragraph 030 of the National Planning Practice Guidance.  

Where no such Sequential Test evidence is provided the application will be invalid.  

Where a site is allocated for development in the development plan, there is no need for a 
sequential test in accordance with Paragraph 104 of the NPPF.

Sustainable Drainage Strategy

Required for all major development applications unless approved on an outline planning 
permission and this makes clear that no further submission is required.  (Note: the outline 
planning permission would usually require further information to be submitted with reserved 
matters).

Review: Retain. Required under the Flood and Water Management Act 2010

Planning Obligations – Draft Heads of Terms

Required for development delivering affordable housing and for all development of 500 
dwellings or more.  (Other development may be CIL liable and not require a Section 106 
Agreement (planning obligation).

Review: Retain as is and using the supplied draft heads of terms template.

We note that the National Planning Practice Guidance provides caution to local authorities if 
requiring draft Heads of Terms (HoT) up front.  Our experience is that usually for the type 
and scale of development requiring a planning obligation, pre application discussions will 
have helped to produce a draft HoT.  It is also our experience that failure to provide this 
information leads to delays in determination of the application due to negotiations and then 
legal procedures taking longer than the 8/13 week determination period.

CIL Questions Form

Required for applications creating:
 New residential development of 100 square metres and over (including householder 

extensions
 The creation of 1 or more dwellings (even if less than 100 square metres)
 Supermarkets, neighbourhood convenience stores and retail warehouse 

development of 100 square metres and over

Review: Retain.  Required by Peterborough Developer Contributions SPD.

54



Tree or Aboricultural Survey

Required where trees are on or adjacent to the site, within a Conservation Area or protected 
by a tree preservation order.  The requirement is split into two levels of information required 
(basic and detailed) depending on whether the application is major, in a Conservation Area 
and/or there are TPO trees present.  Required to enable the assessment of good design: 
Part 7 and particularly paragraph 61 of the NPPF, to enable the LPA to consider implications 
for biodiversity (statutory duties as set out in paragraph 007 of the NPPG) and policy PP16 
of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD

Review:

LEVEL ONE BASIC INFORMATION
Required for all Minor Proposals (including householder applications) where trees are 
located within or adjacent to the application site

All trees are a material consideration in planning. Mandatory information to be provided on a 
plan unless otherwise agreed in writing by the tree officer or a planning officer following pre-
application advice (although the LPA reserve the right to request further information after an 
application is submitted where appropriate):

 location of all trees (over 75mm in diameter measured at 1.5m above ground level) 
within the red line site boundary and within 15m of the proposed work and 
accesses (i.e. plotted on a block plan at scale 1:500 or larger)

 list of trees to be removed
 schedule of any proposed pruning to retained trees.


Note: The above information need not necessarily be required to be submitted by a qualified 
arboriculturalist or landscape architect as long as the information is clearly presented on the 
block plan and any accompanying information.

LEVEL TWO DETAILED INFORMATION TO BRITISH STANDARD
Where trees on an application site are protected by a Tree Preservation Order, Conservation 
Area or are subject to a Major Proposal the following must be submitted in accordance to 
BS5837:2012: Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction - Recommendations, 
unless otherwise confirmed in writing from the Tree Officer OR a planning officer following 
pre-application advice:

 Tree Survey
Arboricultural Impacts Assessment
 Tree Protection Plan

All root protection area infringements during demolition, construction and landscaping (e.g. 
installation of boundary walls/fences) should be identified and appropriate solutions specified 
within the Arboricultural Impacts Assessment and/or on the Tree Protection Plan. The 
existing and proposed drainage, soakaway and service runs should also be plotted on the 
Tree Protection Plan, Site Plan and Landscaping Plan (where applicable).

Note: We may be flexible where the site area is large and makes the application a major 
application but where the actual development area, any construction compound and site 
access are located more than 15 m from any trees.

Note: For very large developments especially residential sites being developed in phases, 
the requirements for reserved matters should be discussed and agreed beforehand with the 
relevant planning officer

55



Biodiversity Survey and Report

A biodiversity checklist is required depending on the scale of the development and whether 
new floor space is being provided.  There are two different checklists – one for minor and 
one for major development.  Depending on the results of the checklist, an ecological survey 
may be required.

Review: Retain.  Required to enable the LPA to exercise its duties under the Wildlife and 
Conservation Act 1981, Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 (The 
Habitats Regulations) and the Badgers Act 1992.  Also required to demonstrate the proposal 
satisfies the requirements of policy PP19 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD.

Details to accompany a waste development which includes mineral extraction

Currently forms part of the local list but advises to undertake pre-application discussions.

Review:  Remove from local list as there are no particular requirements but advise 
applicants to undertake pre-application discussions and see EIA requirements set out above.

Archaeological Assessment

Currently required for any application that proposes work within areas of potential 
archaeological importance.

Review: Retain as is.  Required to satisfy paragraphs 131 to 141 of the NPPF and policy 
CS17 of the Peterborough Core Strategy and PP17 of the Planning Policies DPD.  This 
should be agreed with the LPA as part of pre-application discussions.

Structural Survey

Currently required for all applications involving demolition of, alteration or extension to a 
listed building or building of historic importance or conversion of an agricultural building 
(unless that now falls within the “Prior Approval” regime.

Review: Re-word as follows:

A structural survey will be required in support of an application if the proposal involves 
demolition or alteration of historic fabric i.e. to a listed building or building of local historic 
importance or  if the proposals involves demolition of an unlisted building within a Conservation 
Area (i.e. “relevant demolition” for the purposed of section 196D of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990) unless written confirmation that such a survey is not required has first 
been obtained from the Council’s Historic Environment Team.  In this case the written 
confirmation that a survey is not required must be submitted with the planning application.

The City Council’s Historic Environment team (Jim Daley or Sam Falco) should be contacted 
via 01733 747474 for advice on the nature/extent of the required information/survey.  
Alternatively, email builtenvironment@peterborough.gov.uk

A structural survey is required where the application is for the conversion of a former 
agricultural building to a new use (except where the conversion falls within the Prior Approval 
procedures and a planning application is not required unless it is not evident that the building 
as it stands is capable of being converted and will need new structural elements).  

56

mailto:builtenvironment@peterborough.gov.uk


Landfill Statement

Required for any new building located within 250 metres of a closed landfill site or site on the 
Contaminated Land Register.

Review: Merge with land contamination assessment

Land Contamination Assessment

Required where site contamination is known or suspected.  A landfill statement will be 
required for any new building located within 250 metres of a closed landfill or site on the 
Contaminated Land Register unless contained within the Contamination Assessment.  
Where an applicant relies on a previously approved contamination assessment it must be 
made clear which report (Title, reference and date) is being relied on.  The LPA reserves the 
right to request the re-submission of that report where necessary.

Review: Retain to demonstrate compliance with policy PP20 of the Peterborough Planning 
Policies DPD

Retail or Leisure Development Impact Assessment and Sequential Test

Impact Assessment required for the creation of retail and/or leisure floorspace greater than 
2,500 square metres in out of town centre locations which are not in accordance with the 
adopted development plan.

Review: Retain.  Required by paragraph 26 of part 2 of the NPPF.

Additionally require a sequential test for all main town centre uses that are not located in the 
city centre, a district or local centre in accordance with paragraph 24 of the NPPF.  Main 
town centre uses are defined in the glossary to the National Planning Practice Guidance.

Transport Statement or Assessment

Required for all developments likely to generate significant amounts of movement.

Review: Retain.  Required by the NPPF, paragraph 32.

Lifetime Homes details

Required for proposals including 15 dwellings or more.

Review: Retain.  Required by Policy CS8 of the Peterborough Core Strategy and as 
required by Building Regulations Part M category 2 & 3.

Noise Impact Assessment or Acoustic Report (including vibration)

Required for all new development which gives rise to potential noise nuisance and/or 
vibration to the surrounding area and for all new residential development which may be 
subject to noise nuisance from adjacent sites or trunk roads.

Review: Retain. Policy PP3 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD states that planning 
permission will not be granted if it will result in unacceptable noise and/or disturbance for the 
occupiers or users of nearby property or land.  Where a potentially noisy development is 
proposed a noise assessment or report is needed to enable the LPA to determine if this 
policy is met.  Disturbance might also be caused by vibration and therefore where vibration 

57



might be an issue, the report must also deal with this.  Policy PP4 requires new residential 
development to provide suitable noise attenuation for prospective occupiers.  Where new 
residential development is located near to a potential noise source a noise assessment or 
report (including vibration where relevant) will need to be submitted to enable the LPA to 
assess if policy PP4 can be met.

Air Quality Assessment

Required if the development proposals could impact upon air quality or there are potential 
pollutants.

Review:  Retain.  Required in accordance with guidance contained within the National 
Planning Practice Guidance.  

Requirements proposed to be added to the Local List for “new” topics

Heritage Assessment

Required for all development proposals that would affect any designated heritage asset*.  
The Heritage Statement must:

a) Describe and assess the significance of the asset and/or its setting to determine its 
architectural, historic, artistic or archaeological interest; and

b) Identify the impact of works on the special character of the asset; and
c) Provide a clear justification for the works, especially if these would harm the asset or 

its setting, so that the harm can be weighed against public benefits.

The level of detail required should be proportionate to the asset’s importance and sufficient 
to understand the potential impact of the proposal on its significance and/or setting.

*A heritage asset includes Conservation Areas, listed buildings, locally listed buildings, 
scheduled monuments, listed parks and gardens, areas of archaeological importance.

We will not require a Heritage Assessment for small scale, single storey householder 
development where the proposal is situated to the rear of the property and cannot be seen 
from the public domain.

Required in accordance with policy PP17 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD.

Open Space

Developments requiring open space i.e. developments of 10 dwellings or more or residential 
developments of 0.5 hectares or more – the amounts in square metres of each type of open 
space shall be set out using the table below, in a stand-alone document or within the Design 
and Access Statement/Environmental Statement (clearly labelled/Titled).  This shall be 
accompanied by a suitably scaled plan showing the location of each type of Open Space 
Type within the site and annotated to show the area of each landscape component.
 
If no additional public open space is proposed, submit the table with NIL in the columns.
For large residential sites/sites likely to be developed in phases, the requirements at 
reserved matters stage should be discussed with the relevant planning officer and agreed 
prior to submission.

Required to enable us to assess proposed open space against policy requirement PP14 and 
Appendix B of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD.

58



Open Space 
Type

Quantity ha. Detail of provision 

Children’s Play
Doorstep 
outdoor play 
space 
(historically 
known as LAP)
Junior outdoor 
play space 
(historically 
known as 
LEAP)

Youth Outdoor 
play space 
(historically 
known and 
NEAP)

Family outdoor 
play space
Neighbourhood 
Parks
Country Parks
Natural 
Greenspace
Allotments

Playing Pitches 
/ Outdoor 
Sports
Amenity 
Greenspace

Note: Average household size for Peterborough is 2.5 persons (2011 Census)
Household size per dwelling are as follows; 2 bedroom flat = 2.2 persons, 1 bedroom house 
= 2.2 persons, 2 bedroom house = 2.8 persons, 3 bedroom house = 3.2 persons, 4 bedroom 
house = 3.4 persons (2011 Census)
Note:  It is strongly recommended that all residential applications which may require public 
open space (10 dwellings or more/0.5 hectares or more) are discussed via our pre-
application service.

Advertisement Applications

Applications for advertisement consent currently require the following to be submitted with 
the application form and fee:

 Location Plan
 Existing elevations
 Proposed elevations
 Detailed Drawings

59



Review:  Retain the requirement for the location plan (identified scale, identify position of 
advert(s), show north direction and include a scale bar.  The location plan shall be OS 
based.

Retain the requirement for detailed drawings of the proposed advert(s).
Existing elevations and proposed elevations – offer alternative of either submitting plans as 
currently required or providing photos of all existing elevations affected and photomontage(s) 
of the proposed advertisements in the proposed locations on all elevations and where there 
is more than one advert cross referencing the photomontage(s) with the detailed drawings 
(i.e. number each advert).

Applications for works on trees subject to a Tree Preservation Order

The application must include the following:
 Standard form must be completed;
 Clear plans or aerial images with trees clearly numbered and annotated;
 Clear justification for the works.  If works are for a health and safety reason a 

justification for this must be provided and supported by a tree surgeon or 
arboricultural consultant; and

 Clear specification of the works to be undertaken (examples of what is clear and 
what is not will be provided).

Reserved Matters Applications

Where the outline planning permission contains a condition or conditions requiring that 
specific information is submitted as part of a reserved matter, when that reserved matter is 
submitted the required information must also be provided.

60



PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL 
PROTECTION COMMITTEE

AGENDA ITEM No. 7

20 DECEMBER 2016 PUBLIC REPORT

Cabinet Members responsible: Councillor Hiller - Cabinet Member for Growth, Planning, 
Housing and Economic Development

Contact Officer:
Reporting Officer:

Nick Harding - Head of Planning
Louise Lovegrove - Senior Development Management Officer

Tel. 454441
Tel. 454439

PLANNING APPEALS QUARTERLY REPORT ON APPEALS PERFORMANCE 
SEPTEMBER TO NOVEMBER 2016 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S
FROM: Corporate Director of Growth and Regeneration Deadline date: December 2016

It is recommended that the Planning and Environmental Protection Committee notes past 
performance and outcomes.

1. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT

1.1 It is useful for Committee to look at the Planning Service’s appeals performance and 
identify if there are any lessons to be learnt from the decisions made. This will help inform 
future decisions and potentially reduce costs. This report is presented under the terms of 
the Council’s constitution Part 3, delegations section 2 para 2.6.1.4. 

1.2 This report covers the period from 1 September 2016 to 30 November 2016 and a list of all 
appeal decisions received can be found at Appendix A.  

1.3 For the purposes of ‘lesson learning’, these update reports will normally cover a selected 
number of cases in detail whereby the Local Planning Authority (LPA) has lost its case.  
Attention will be paid to the difference in assessment of the selected schemes between the 
LPA and Planning Inspector.  In this instance, owing to the limited number of appeal 
decisions which overturn the Local Planning Authority’s decision, no case study is included.  

2. TIMESCALE.

Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan?

NO If Yes, date for relevant 
Cabinet Meeting

N/A

3. APPEAL PERFORMANCE

3.1 In the period of 1 September to 30 November 2016, a total of 5 appeal decisions have been 
received.  This number is broadly similar to the corresponding periods in 2015 and 2014, 
whereby 4 and 7 appeal decisions were received respectively.  All of the appeals related to 
the refusal of planning permission.  

3.2 Of the 5 decisions received, 4 cases were dismissed by the Planning Inspector appointed 
by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government (80%) and 1 was allowed 
(20%).  None of the decisions were subject to an award of costs either for, or against, the 
Council.  This represents a similar level of performance when compared to the previous 
quarter of 2016, whereby 6 were dismissed (86%) and 1 allowed (14%).  This performance 
represents an improvement from the same quarter of 2015, whereby 2 were dismissed 

61



(50%) and 2 allowed (50%), but is broadly similar to the same quarter of 2014, whereby 5 
were dismissed (71%) and 2 allowed (29%).  

3.3 The similarity in data, excluding 2015, suggests that the quality of decision-making has 
remained consistent over the past 2 years.  

3.4 Of the planning application decisions appealed during this quarter, all resulted from Officer 
delegated decisions. This is not unusual given the relatively low number of applications 
which are referred for determination by Members.   

3.5 The Government has just announced that it will be looking at the quality of Local Authority 
decision making for major applications and non-major applications.  As such, as of April 
2018, the Council will be monitored on all appeals performance.  The measure to be 
applied relates to the percentage of appeals lost (allowed against the Authority’s decision) 
as a percentage of the total number of decisions made and the Government has set the 
target at no more than 10%.  

3.6 To provide Members with an indication as to how we are performing currently, the table at 
Appendix B sets out the performance between October 2015 and October 2016 
(inclusive).  As can be seen, the Council is performing far below the threshold set by 
Government and as such, this does not pose any concerns in terms of the quality of 
planning decisions being issued.  

4. IMPLICATIONS

4.1 Legal Implications – There are no legal implications relating to this report on 
performance, although the planning/appeal processes themselves must have due regard to 
legal considerations and requirements.

4.2 Financial Implications – This report itself does not have any financial implications.

4.3 Human Rights Act – This report itself has no human rights implications but the 
planning/appeals processes have due regard to human rights issues.

4.4 Human Resources – This report itself has no human resources implications.  

4.5 ICT – This report itself has no ICT implications.  

4.6 Property – This report itself has no Property implications.

4.7 Contract Services – This report itself has no Contract Services implications. 

4.8 Equality and Diversity – This report itself has no Equality and Diversity Implications, 
although the planning/appeals processes have due regard to such considerations.

5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

5.1 None.

6. APPENDICES

6.1 Appendix A – Appeal Performance 1 September 2016 to 30 November 2016.

6.2 Appendix B – Appeals Quality Monitoring from October 2015 and October 2016 (inclusive).

62



Appendix A – Appeals Performance from 01.01.2016 to 31.08.2016 

 

Application 

reference 
Address Proposal 

Officer 

Recommendation 

Committee 

Decision / 

Date 

Reasons for Refusal 
Appeal 

Procedure 

Appeal 

Decision / 

Date 

Costs 

Decision 
Inspector’s Reasons 

15/00369/OUT Land To The 

East Of 

Woolfellhill Rd 

Eye 

Peterborough 

Development of 

Agricultural Land 

to provide a Eco 

Community of 

Eleven Self-

sufficient 

dwellings 

Refusal N/A 1. Site lies outside settlement boundary 

and is open countryside.  Proposal 

would not be of exceptional quality or 

innovative design – contrary to CS1, 

SA4 and paragraph 55 of NPPF. 

2. Substandard access in terms of width, 

posing a highway safety danger – 

contrary to PP12.  

3. Insufficient evidence to demonstrate 

no harm to likely buried archaeology 

– contrary to CS17 and Section 12 of 

NPPF. 

4. Failed to pass flood risk Sequential 

Test – contrary to CS22 and Section 

10 of NPPF. 

Written 

Representations 

Dismissed 

05.09.2016 

N/A 

 

- Site is set apart from the settlement and is 

somewhat out on a  limb in relation to the 

main built-up area.  Pedestrian access would 

not be safe and therefore residents would 

have reservations in using it.  Proposal 

would offer limited contribution to 

enhancing or maintaining the vitality of the 

rural community.   

- Development would appear an intrusion 

into and detract from the open rural 

character of the area.  

- Proposal’s design principles, energy saving 

features and use of materials are well 

established and not convinced that the 

scheme would be particularly unique or 

unusual in this regard. Proposal would 

therefore not meet the special circumstance 

set out in paragraph 55 of NPPF. 

- Insufficient evidence for confident 

assessment of the archaeological potential 

of the site.  As such, cannot be satisfied that 

no harm to archaeological remains would 

result.  

- Have seen nothing to suggest that 

satisfactory access to the site could not be 

achieved through appropriate conditions.  

- Majority of the site is within Flood Zone 1.  

There is no reason why it would not be 

possible to accommodate the proposed 

dwellings wholly within this area. 

16/00417/HHFUL 10 Soke Road 

Newborough 

Peterborough 

PE6 7QT 

Detached garage 

to front of 

property - 

resubmission 

Refusal N/A 1. Garage would site to the front of the 

property and occupy a prominent 

position, resulting in a  structure that 

would be very visible in the 

streetscene.  Out of keeping with 

established built form – contrary to 

CS16 and PP2.  

Householder 

Appeals Service 

(HAS)  

Dismissed 

05.09.2016 

N/A - Quite substantial garage, situated in a 

prominent location, would detract visually 

from the spacious character of the street. 

Harm caused would not be considerable, 

but would be significant and this is sufficient 

to not comply with CS16 and PP2.   

15/02218/OUT 202 Thorpe  Rd 

Peterborough 

PE3 6LB 

Erection of a 

detached 2/3 

bedroom 

bungalow with 

associated car 

parking and 

amenity space 

Refusal N/A 1. Proposal represents backland 

development in an area characterised 

by Arcadian landscape, comprising 

low density development.  Would be 

inconsistent with the established 

layout and at odds with principles for 

which the area was designated a 

Special Character Area – contrary to 

SA19 and PP17. 

Written 

Representations 

Dismissed 

29.09.2016 

N/A - Special Character Area (SCA) characterised 

by low-density, large detached houses set in 

spacious, well-landscaped gardens.  Accept 

that proposal could physically be 

comfortably accommodated within the site, 

however it would nonetheless alter the 

character of the area.  Proposal would be 

significantly out-of-keeping with the form of 

development in the SCA and would 

63



Appendix A – Appeals Performance from 01.01.2016 to 31.08.2016 

 

2. Garden size would be unacceptable 

reduced, at odds with the character of 

the site and its surroundings – 

contrary to CS16. 

represent a harmful erosion of the special 

character which would make future 

proposals hard to resist.   

16/00270/OUT 31 Westhawe 

Bretton 

Peterborough 

PE3 8BA 

Construction of a 

single residential 

dwelling 

Refusal N/A 1. Unacceptable harm to the general 

character of the area – contrary to 

CS16, PP2 and Section 6 of NPPF. 

2. Unacceptable harm to the amenities 

of neighbouring occupants in terms of 

overbearing impact – contrary to 

CS16 and PP3.  

3. Proposal poses unacceptable risk to 

adjacent Mucklands Wood County 

Wildlife Site ancient woodland – 

contrary to PP16, PP18 and Section 11 

of NPPF. 

4. Unacceptable level of amenity would 

be afforded to future occupiers owing 

to lack of private amenity space and 

relationship to adjacent woodland – 

contrary to PP4. 

5. Proposed access would offer 

unacceptable pedestrian visibility – 

contrary to CS14 and PP12. 

6. Insufficient access width posing a 

danger to highway safety – contrary 

to CS14 and PP12.  

7. Insufficient turning would be provided 

within the site, leading to vehicles 

reversing onto the highway – contrary 

to CS14 and PP12.  

Written 

Representations 

Dismissed 

30.09.2016 

N/A - The area is of unique design, with an 

attractive, spacious character.  A dwelling 

sited in the rear garden would result in a 

cramped and incongruous form of backland 

development, starkly at odds with the 

pattern provided by existing frontage 

housing.   

- Whilst the reserved matters could minimise 

any overbearing or loss of privacy, this 

would not be sufficient to reduce the 

harmful impact on the outlook from the 

immediate neighbour. Proposal would also 

detract from the level of quietude and 

seclusion offered by the neighbouring back 

garden at present.  

- Not persuaded that an additional dwelling 

would materially harm the potential 

management of this part of the County 

Wildlife Site as ancient woodland. 

- Not persuaded that the proposed access 

would materially harm the safety of 

pedestrians, cyclists and drivers using the 

cul-de-sac.    

16/01249/HHFUL 30 Thorpe Park 

Road 

Peterborough 

PE3 6LG 

External wall 

insulation with 

red brick effect 

render to front 

elevation 

Refusal N/A 1. Proposed red brick effect render 

would be visually inappropriate and 

out of keeping with the properties 

along the streetscene – contrary CS16 

and PP2.  

Householder 

Appeals Services 

(HAS) 

Allowed 

04.11.2016 

N/A - Thorpe Park Road exhibit a variety of forms, 

styles and material finishes, therefore 

unable to discern an underlying built pattern 

or common finish.  The eastern elevation 

has been completed (under a previous 

permission) and part is visible from the 

streetscene.  The colour proposed would be 

more uniform than that of the nearby 

brickwork however other properties have 

been painted a similar colour to that 

proposed.  Furthermore, the front boundary 

wall provides some screening.  The 

proposed cladding would not be detrimental 

to the property or surrounding streetscene.   

 

64



Appendix B – Appeals Quality Monitoring from October 2015 to October 2016 (inclusive)

Oct 
2015

Nov 
2015

Dec 
2015

Jan 
2016

Feb 
2016

Mar 
2016

Apr 
2016

May 
2016

Jun 
2016

Jul 
2016

Aug 
2016

Sep 
2016

Oct 
2016

Period 
TOTAL

Total 
decisions 6 5 13 2 3 5 3 4 5 5 5 5 7 68

Allowed 
appeals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

M
AJO

R

Percentage 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 %

 

Total 
decisions 79 72 52 81 59 91 109 80 112 101 92 91 71 1,090

Allowed 
appeals 1 1 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 6

N
O

N
-M

AJO
R

Percentage 1.27 % 1.39 % 1.92 % 0.00 % 3.39 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 1.41 % 0.55 %

65



T
his page is intentionally left blank

66


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Meeting Held on 18 October 2016
	5.1 16/01750/FUL - 29 Long Causeway, Peterborough, PE1 1YJ
	5.1 1601750FUL - 29 Long Causeway, Peterborough

	5.2 16/01751/ADV - 29 Long Causeway, Peterborough, PE1 1YJ
	5.2 1601751ADV - 29 Long Causeway, Peterborough

	5.3 16/02049/FUL - Firwood, First Drift, Wothorpe, Stamford
	5.3 1602049FUL - Firwood, First Drift, Wothorpe
	5.3 1602049FUL Appendix 1 - Firwood, First Drift, Wothorpe

	6 Review of Local List for Validation of Planning Applications
	6. Appendix A - Review of Local List for Validation of Planning Applications

	7 Planning Appeals Quarterly Report on Appeals Performance September to November 2016
	7. Appendix A - Planning Appeals Quarterly Report on Appeals Performance September to November 2016
	7. Appendix B - Planning Appeals Quarterly Report on Appeals Performance September to November 2016




